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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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REVENUE / NET INCOME / DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE /
In Millions of Dollars(? In Millions of DoHars (3 9 In Dollars(® (3 ()

Selected Financiatl (nformation

N THOUSANPS / EXCERT PER-SHARE_AMOUNTS), 1298 J2990 2000 2001 2002
{ Income Statement Data (@ ®1®
Revenue $1,351,431 $1,486,997 $1,703,096 $1,981,837 $2,593,237
Income from operations 214,904 175,915 335,262 399,210 547,233
| Net income before extraordinary items 127,308 100,531 212,972 246,055 325,641
i Net income 130,382 111,201 212,972 246,055 325,641
Basic net income per share before
extraordinary items 0.53 0.40 0.81 0.89 1.15
Diluted net income per share before
extraordinary items, Q.51 0.39 0.78 0.86 1.12
Basic net income per share 0.54 0.44 0.81 0.89 1.15
Diluted net income per share 0.52 0.43 0.78 0.86 1.12
Balance Sheet Data
Total assets $1,214,192 $1,564,762 $1,845,185 $2,898,158 $3,281,596
Total short-term and long-term debt 27,158 13,272 13,847 458,631 206,092
Stockholders' equity 840,447 1,210,767 1,442,476 1,793,856 2,222,399

(1) Includes a charge for pro forma income taxes for periods before the March 1999 acquisition of Automated Securities Clearance, Ltd. (ASC). ASC was a
Subchapter S corporation before the Company acquired it, and net income and all net income per share amounts before March 1999 are presented on a pro
forma basis since generally accepted accounting principles require the presentation of pro forma income tax expense for ASC as if ASC had been a Subchapter
C corporation for all periods presented.

(2) All revenue amounts include reimbursed expenses (see Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). All per-share amounts before June 2001 are
adjusted for the June 2001 two-for-one stock split.

(3) Includes amortization of goodwill, net of tax, of $10,048, $10,754, $13,877 and $17,853 in 1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively {$0.04, $0.04, $0.05
and $0.06 per diluted share, respectively — see Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

(4) 1998 includes merger and restructuring costs of $14,584 ($12,369 after tax; $0.05 per diluted share) and after-tax extraordinary gains resulting from the early
retirement of debt of $3,074 ($0.01 per diluted share). 1999 includes merger costs of $99,184 ($71,309 pro forma after tax; $0.27 per diluted share) and extra-
ordinary gains of $16,766 ($10,670 after tax; $0.04 per diluted share) resulting from the sale of two wholly owned healthcare information systems businesses
and from the early retirement of debt. 2000 includes charges of $13,177 ($8,547 after tax; $0.03 per diluted share) for purchased in-process research and
development and merger costs. 2001 includes charges of $17,670 ($12,736 after tax; $0.04 per diluted share) for the write-off of an investment, facility shut-
down and severance costs related to the acquisition of the Comdisco, Inc. availability solutions business (CAS) and merger costs, which were offset in part by
a break-up fee and a realized gain on short-term investments sold in connection with the funding of the CAS acquisition. 2002 includes charges of $11,793
($8,570 after tax; $0.03 per diluted share) for facility shut-down and severance costs related to the acquisitions of Guardian iT plc (Guardian) and CAS, along
with the Company’s share of merger costs associated with its equity interests in Brut LLC and Guardian before the Company acquired 100% of the equity of
each company, net of other income of $2,993 related to a gain on foreign currency purchased to fund the Guardian acquisition. See Notes 1 and 2 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SunGeare hes demonstrated an exceptional ability te achieve growth In geed times

ane bad. It has done se by positiening the cempany &t the focal peint of its customers’
prierities: efffcieney and resilience. IR the context of custemers’ eperatiens, efficiency
means preducing mere with less = mere Infermatien and greater accuracy with less time
ane fewer reseurees.

Resillence means the strength and depth te keep producing even In the face of business
interruptions, natural disasters and ether eperational threats. Operational efficlency and
eperationsl resiliencee are Impertant to SUnGare custorers becavse they fuel cempetitive-
ness. This in turn mekes SunGare mere cempatitive.




JAMES L. MANKN CRISTORAL CONDE
CHAIRMAN ©F TRE BOARE PRESIDENT AND
CRIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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A MESSAGE TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS

SunGard performed strongly in 2002, achieving continued growth despite difficult
econcomic conditions. This performance is due to several factors: our focus on opera-
tional efficiency and resilience that matches cur customers’ priorities; cur broadly
diversified customer base and wide range of products; cur successful acquisition
program; and our ability to execute even in challenging times.

Revenue and earnings increased for the vear, continuing an unbroken record of
growth that dates to 1983, when SunGard became an independent company. Revenue
reached $2.6 billion, a 31 pércem increase over 2001, Net income for the year
increased to $326 million, a gain of 32 percent, and diluted net income per share was
$1.12, an increase of 30 percent. Excluding merger costs, other one-time items and
goodwill amortization, net income increased to $334 million* a gain of 21 percent.
Diluted earnings per share calculated on the same basis reached $1.15% an increase
of 19 percent.

* See notes 3 and 4 to Selected Financial Information on page 1.
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Over the past twenty years, SunGard has grown into one of the most efficient opera-
tors of resilient information technology (IT) solutions in the world. This efficiency
comes from the economies of scale we achieve by providing our products and serv-
ices on shared platforms to thousands of customers throughout the world’s financial
markets. We serve financial services institutions by processing their investment and
trading transactions, and we serve IT-dependent enterprises by helping them ensure
their business continuity. We see an opportunity to become even more valuable

to our customers by deepening our relationships with them and further leveraging
our scale, thus maintaining consistent revenue streams and profits that build
stockholder value.

SunGard’s large customer base and broad range of products and pricing result in a
diversified revenue stream. Not one of SunGard’s twenty thousand customers account
for more than 3 percent of total revenue, and no SunGard Investment Support
Systems product represents more than 8 percent of that segment’s revenue. Only
about 10 percent of total revenue is tied to trade volumes or asset values, while
software license fees now comprise 6 percent of total revenue, down from 14 percent
three years ago.

“SUCCESS THROUGH CUSTOMER SATISFACTION?®
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While financial stability is a key measure of SunGard’s success, more importantly

we measure cur success through customer satisfaction and the depth of our relation-
ships with customers. Many of the world’s best-known organizations place their trust
in SunGard, implementing SunGard solutions to solve the business-critical challenges
of operational efficiency and resilience. We profile a few of those organizations in
this report. SunGard understands the value of customer relationships and the trust
that customers have in our solutions and services.

Operational Efficiency SunGard continues te grow by offering customers the com-
petitive advantage of operational efficiency. In the current economic environment,
financial services institutions face increasingly intense competition and pressures on
their margins. They must become more operationally efficient in crder to compete,

and even survive, in this economy. For these institutions, achieving their goals
requires processing investment transactions efficiently and reliabkly. Often the
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solution is outsourcing their IT processing or investment operations to an efficient
service provider like SunGard. Our customers’ need for cost savings creates opportu-
nities for SunGard.

As our customers analyze the total cost of ownership associated with their IT opera-
tions, they realize that in-house systems require teams of developers, significant
data-center infrastructure, and armies of clerks serving as information intermediaries
to make incompatible systems work together. Tremendous investment is required to
integrate these systems. The costs of integration can ocutweigh the advantages from
proprietary systems development. In some organizations, 70 percent of IT spending
goes toward integration — linking systems, data and workflow processes that were
not designed to work together. This situation is especizally challenging for those
financial services institutions that have resulted from mergers, in which duplicate
systems often run in parallel or overlap. A key objective of consolidation, realizing
merger-related savings and scale, compels managers to integrate systems.

In this context the value of SunGard’s proven and ready-to-implement integrated
systems becomes clear. SunGard systems offer the advantages of time-to-market and
scalability. SunGard seclutions may be deployed or upgraded much more quickly than
the average in-house system, especially when operated on an ASP basis on SunGard’s
network. The efficiency gains of the straight-through processing that SunGard
provides will continue to produce savings as volumes, complexity and scale grow.

“PROVEN READY=-TO=-IMPLEMENT INTEGRATED SYSTEMS?”




PAGE 9 / SUNGARD ANNUAL REPORT 2002

Operational Resilience A second distinctive advantage that SunGard delivers is
operational resilience. Post 9/11, businesses continue to reassess their vulnerability to
external events of many kinds. Inevitably, these analyses lead to the conclusion that
the contmgency plans currently in place are incomplete.

Many executives both within and beyond the IT world face complex challenges in
implementing well-engineered information-availability solutions. This complexity
begins with the technology envircnment itself, with the need to support a diverse
array of applications and platforms. It extends to the many needs that transcend
technology — providing workspace, network access, support and connectivity to staff.
Adding to this complexity is the need to engineer solutions that are affordable, since
the cost to replicate every facility, mainframe, server, storage unit and workstation
across an enterprise is prohibitive. Instead, a business continuity plan must be based
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on an impact analysis — examining each business process and weighing the cost
incurred when the process is interrupted against the cost of preventing that interrup-
tion. The result is a plan that reflects sound prioritization.

The complexity of developing cost-effective resilience means that customers increas-
ingly turn to SunGard for the infrastructure and expertise it offers, spanning the
continuum of information-availability services. These services extend from business
continuity planning te managing and protecting information assets, to managing
network services. SunGard provides high-availability services and a choice of shared
or dedicated environments. This broad range of services is offered in 75 facilities,
containing more than 3 million square feet of hardened, secure recovery facilities and
more than 30 technology platforms. Over the course of two decades, SunGard has
demonstrated a 100 percent rate of successful recoveries.

Customers recognize the strength of SunGard’s position in both Investment Support
Systems and Availability Services and understand the advantages of SunGard’s scale
of operations and depth of specialization. Managers responsible for information
processing appreciate this economic reality and choose to act upon it, contracting for
processing and information availability services from SunGard. This further secures
SunGard's position in the value chain of services providers.

“A 100% RATE OF SUCCESSFUL RECOVERIES”
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Growling Stronger SunGard’s success is due tc a steadfast adherence to its manage-
ment principles of strategic prudence, management precision, performance rewards
and professional excelience. We consistently propagate these management principles

by an emphasis on professionalism in the conduct of its business. Doing everything in
the best way possible also means following high standards of ethical behavior. We

?

?
formally and by example to our nearly nine thousand employees. SunGard has grown
believe that attention to profits and attention to ethics are not conflicting activities.

In 2002 SunGard became a member of the S&P 500 Index, reflecting its continued
growth and prominence as a technology company. By continuing to execute on its
long-term strategy, SunGard ended the vear in an even stronger position. A key

to this position is solid financial footing. Approximately 90 percent of SunGard’s
revenue is from services, generated primarily from long-term availability and
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processing contracts. This services revenue provides considerable stability and allows
SunGard to invest continuously in product development. In addition, SunGard’s strong
financial position enables it to act quickly when acquisition cpportunities arise that
fit well with its core competencies and make sense financially.

More than ever, companies are opting for proven solutions from established vendors.
They are committing to vendors that will be viable in the long term. At the same time
they are consolidating their many vendor relationships into a set of key strategic

partnerships. This trend strongly favors SunGard.

Confidence and Strength SunGard’s success and outstanding results in 2002 are

due to the efforts of its people, a remarkably talented group of professionals who
together represent SunGard’s meost important asset. We thank all of our employees
for their hard work over the course of the year. Their dedication to meeting the needs
of our customers by adhering to our management principles is always the key to the
successful execution of ocur strategy.

The past year brought two leadership changes. In August, Cris Conde became
SunGard’s chief executive officer, culminating a successful three-year succession
process that began when he assumed the role of chief operating officer in 1998. In
addition, Janet Brutschea Haugen, senior vice president and chief financial officer

“TO CONTINUE BUILDING STOCKHOLDER VALUE?
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of Unisys Corporation, was elected to our board of directors and its audit committee.
Janet brings insight and strong financial experience to a beoard that has distinguished
itself for its independence and scund judgment.

We look tc the vear ahead with confidence and strength. As always, our goal is to
continue building stockhelder value by serving our customers well, meeting our
financial targets and aggressively pursuing growth opportunities, even in the face of
difficult economic conditions. We should achieve that goal by continuing to focus
on coperational efficiency and resilience, capitalize on the diversity of our customer
base and products, and follow through with highly disciplined execution.

Calt

Cristébal Conde, President and Chief Executive Officer

James L. Mann, Chairman of the Board
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INVESTMENT SUPPORT SYSTEMS*/

$1.408 BILLION—2002 /
$1.345 BILLION—2001

REVENUE




“(LO0Z —Uol W 6L$/Z00Z —UOIiIW $Z$ (DNUDAIY) JuUdWIBLRURY J01S2AU] B JJBUDE/SS] O] J18Y10D WO1) HUN SSSUISNG U0 JO UONBDIYISSR|D3 £00Z 9Y) 104 paisnipy ,

M p— = -

‘SWAISAS PIEOUNS SN SIUBUWILIBAOB
}220| pue S|OoYDS JO SPURSNOY |

e —

S92)1A4DS Buljiel

SJUBA] [eads
lIeDWRWS SauBg uadQo
'S4 ‘ssedwoouly BoueApY SIDV

g e e B

"SBDIAIDS SV PABOUNS IBYI0
UM Pasn ualyo ‘suoietodiod 'sn

‘sjeydsoy
pue SJUBLIUIBACE [BD0| ‘S|O0YDS

'

$331A48S Buijiely

‘suoneziuebio

1oIduou J3YIo pue |euslesnps

104 Buniodat pue Bulsiespuny ‘Gul
-1UNO2DY :3youduoN @ 103235 dlgnd

HIO0MIdU
1O S3|IW O00'SZ 49A0 AQ PaId3UU0d
1311108} AI8A0D81 8IND3s ‘pauspiey
JO 1884 alenbs uojjiw § Ui swaojie|d

ABojouy2ay O JaAc BulalO

“$J9W03ISN2 OO0l UM ‘adoin3 pue
eDuBY UYLON Ul SadIAIRSs AJIjige|ieae
JO JBplAacad Buipes| pue 1asuoid

AIBAODDY SWIBISAS
AIBAODDIY
BunsoH pabeuey
AJjiqejieay-ybiy
isuue|dga

Aianooay Jiasn pulz

,ﬁ

: / mw@i@

‘BuLn}oRynURW

pUe 848243}je8Y 'S8dIAIRS jRIDURUY
ul Aeinonaed ‘edoany pue esuswy
YLION Ul saouabe 1UaWUIBA0B

pue suoile10diod Jo dbues peoig

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
{
m
|

g5 ALITTGV VAV

‘suonedtidde Aued-pliy) pue piegung
104 $321A48S Bullsoy pabeuew pue
(dSVY) 43plaoid 5321A495 uonedddy

‘BIeMYOS

Buluueld pue Bullnsuod Buipnpul
‘sANOIBYIOM JBSN-PUD PUB ‘SHIOMIDU
‘suojiejd Bunndwos (e Joj SadlAlas
ANuUnNUOD ssauIsng dAlsuayaIdwo)

w

[T T

‘SWAISAS piegung

uo pabeuews a4e S318SSE Ul UOl|

-3 OL$ 4240 Yim siapjoy puoqg pue
AJNba ‘puny |eMnw Uil GZ 1BA0

'SWDISAS pUeoung uo pabeuew
81e 533558 Ul UOH|U) §'2$ 49A0 Buipjoy
sauedyauag ueid uol|lw 65 JBAQ

iauyeq
uoNEASH(] JNIBSISA PIROUNS
'SSYdIWOD RIRDUNS MOVdNIA

HVLISNNS ‘INO.IeISaAU]|
11SSD 49ISeWIIBD) U3ISRWpPUOg

SWIOH JUBWIUIBAOD) sNijay
‘SjUBINDOQ SNijaY ‘UoReIISHIWPY
sNiay ‘abewiamod snidiuwo
‘RediuwO ‘NIFQIVWO 1SSIDOVIN

'S3IURALIOD SBDIAISS [RIDURUIY pue
‘sjuabe pue ssuedwod Idueunsyy

‘SpUny [enINW pue syueg
‘sjuabe tajsued) ‘saaisnJ) sjesodiod)

SN Ayl w Apsow
‘ssjueq pue spunj [eninw Buipnouy
siojensiuiwpe uejd JUsWBIIRY

LOOZ—NOITIIW 652% / TO0Z—NOITTK »5e$ WDZ‘m;,w\m J\z LNSWaSDYNWY R & @nﬁmww_ ANT B Lida __//__ w

‘suoisuad
pue saijinuue ‘dd3ueinsul a4l 40}
uonessiuiwpe Aslod pue Buiunoddy

'SpUNy [eNINW pue sat}
-unN2as Jo sbulpjoy Jo Buniodss pue
$1945URIY dIYySI3UMO JO BUISSAO0Id
‘BURUNOIDIL I3P|oYPUOY pue iaploy
-aieys ‘uonensiuwpe ueld OPLOY
104 uonessuab Juawndop pue bul
-daaypi0d8s ‘BuuNodDe Jueddiied

| L AVAILABILITY SERVICES /— L— oTHER*/—
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$115 MILLION—2001

REVENUE
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$522 MILLION=—2001
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INVESTMENT
SUPPORT SYSTEMS

BROKERAGE & TRADING

SunGard Business Integration
New York, New York
212. 977.7366

SunGard Financial Networks
Hinsdale, lllinois
630. 220.3100

SunGard Futures Systems
Chicago, !llinois
312. 577.6100

SunGard Global Execution Services
New York, New York
212, 566.1600

SunGard Securities Processing
Bedford, Massachusetts
781. 275.7444

SunGard Trading Systems
Jersey City, New Jersey
201. 499.5900

WEALTH MANAGEMENT

SunGard Asset Management Systems
Birmingham, Alabama
205. 437.7500

SunGard Market Data Services
Mount Laurel, New Jersey
856. 235.7300

SunGard Online Investment Systems
Salt Lake City, Utah
801. 955.6100

SunGard Securities Finance
Salem, New Hampshire
603. 898.5980

SunGard Wealth Management
Services

Wichita, Kansas

316. 609.7800

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT

SunGard insurance Systems
Atlanta, Georgia
770. 587.6800

SunGard Investment Management
Systems

Hinsdale, lllinois

630. 920.3100

TREASURY & RISK MANAGEMENT

SunGard Energy Systems
Houston, Texas
713. 266.7771

SunGard eProcess Intelligence
Livingston, New Jersey
973. 994.2390

SunGard Trading & Risk Systems
London, England
44, 20. 7337.6000

SunGard Treasury Systems
Calabasas, California
818. 223.2300

BENEFIT & INVESTOR MANAGEMENT

SunGard Employee Benefit Systems
Birmingham, Alabama
205. 437.7500

SunGard Insurance Systems/FDP
Miami, Florida
305. 858.8200

SunGard Investor Accounting Systems
Wayne, Pennsylvania
610. 975.3000

SunGard Workflow Solutions
Birmingham, Alabama
205. 870.4100

AVAILABILITY SERVICES

SunGard Availability Services
Wayne, Pennsylvania
484. 582.2000

OTHER

SunGard Mailing Services
Birmingham, Alabama
205. 307.6800

SunGard Public Sector &
Nonprofit Systems
Chico, California

530. 891.5281
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION /

UNAUDITED

FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH

UN_THAUSANDS L TXCERT PER-SHARE AMSHNTS) AUARTER AUARTER. OUARTER OUBRTER
w -
E 2002 @
1 Revenues $608,223 $623,328 $659,915 $701,771
{ ncome before income taxes 114,789 137,464 129,983 161,061
! Net income 70,021 81,684 78,078 95,858
| Diluted net income per common share 0.24 0.28 0.27 0.33
} zoo-a (2) (33

Revenues $454,399 $475,020 $476,636 $575,782
Il Income before income taxes 91,550 108,193 102,548 108,181
\\ Net income 53,954 64,280 62,247 65,574
i Diluted net income per common share 0.19 0.22 0.22 0.23

i
|

(1) Includes merger costs and other acquisition-related items of $1,677, $(590), $10,519 and $187 during the first, second, third and fourth quarters, respectively ($1,023,
$542, $6,926 and $79 after tax; or $0.01 and $0.02 per diluted share in the first and third quarters, respectively, and less than $0.01 per diluted share in the second and
fourth quarters). See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Includes the write-off of an investment, merger costs and other acquisition-related items of $1,829 and $15,841 during the second and fourth quarters, respectively

($2,709 and $10,027 after tax; or $0.01 and $0.03 per diluted share, respectively), and amortization of goodwill. See Notes 1 and 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements.

(3) All revenue amounts include reimbursed expenses (see Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). All per-share amounts before June 2001 are adjusted for

the June 2001 two-for-one stock split.
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STOCK INFORMATION

The common stock of SunGard Data Systems Inc. (the Company) is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
SDS. At March 14, 2003, the Company had approximately 7,500 stockholders of record. No dividends have ever been paid on the

Company’s common stock. The Company’s policy is to retain earnings for use in its business.

The accompanying table indicates high and low sales prices per share of the Company’s common stack, as reported on the New

York Stock Exchange. All prices before June 2001 reflect the Company's June 2001 two-for-one stock split.

=
3;‘ Calendar Year 2002
{| First Quarter $35.10 $27.20
g Second Quarter 33.10 22.90
! Third Quarter 26.48 18.60
i Fourth Quarter 24.70 14.70
‘ Calendar Year 2001
; First Quarter $30.07 $21.41
1| Second Quarter 32.25 22.75
| Third Quarter 32.49 21.61
Fourth Quarter 29.70 20.00

il

The closing price of the Company’s common stock on March 14, 2003, as reported on the New York Stock Exchange, was

$19.50 per share.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION
SunGard is an efficient operator of resilient IT solutions. This efficiency comes from the economies of scale achieved by providing
products and services on shared platforms to thousands of customers throughout the world’s financial, business and government
markets. The Company has three segments. Investment Support Systems (ISS) primarily serves financial services institutions
by processing their investment and trading transactions. ISS develops, markets and maintains a broad range of complementary
software applications, grouped into the following business areas: brokerage and trading systems; wealth management systems;
investment management systems; treasury and risk management systems; and benefit and investor management systems. ISS
delivers its systems as an apglication service provider, using its data centers that customers access via the Internet or a private
network, and on a license fee basis. Customers include banks, brokers, exchange members, corporates, investment managers,
mutual funds, investment advisers, insurance companies, depositories, custodians, trustees, benefit plan administrators, transfer
agents, utilities, energy companies and governments. Availability Services (AS) primarily serves IT-dependent enterprises by
helping them ensure the continuity of their business. AS provides a comprehensive continuum of information-availability services
for all major computing platforms, as well as information-availability consulting services and planning software. AS also provides
managed hosting services for application and data-center outsourcing. Other Businesses provide general ledger and administration
software systems to the public sector, workflow management systems to healthcare organizations and automated mailing services.
The following discussion includes historical and certain forward-looking information that should be read together with the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and related footnotes and the discussion below of certain risks and uncertainties
that could cause future operating results ro differ materially from historical results or the expected results indicated by forward-

looking statements.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make numerous estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. Those estimates and judgments are based on historical experience, future expectations and other
factors and assumptions beliaved to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Company reevaluates its estimates and judgments
on an ongoing basis and revises them when necessary or appropriate. Actual results may differ from the original or revised esti-
mates. A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies is contained in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. A description of the most critical policies follows. The Company’s management has discussed the critical accounting

policies discussed below with the Company's audit committee.

Intangible Assets and Purchase Accounting

The Company seeks to grow through both internal development and the acquisition of businesses that broaden or complement

its product lines. During the past three years, the Company spent approximately $1.3 billion, net of cash acquired, to purchase 24
businesses (including $852.0 million to acquire the Comdisco Inc. availability solutions business (CAS) in 2001). Purchase
accounting requires all assets and liabilities to be recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, including identifiable intangible
assets separate from goodwill. For the Company, identifiable intangible assets generally include software, customer contracts and
relationships (grouped together as customer base) and noncompetition agreements. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the
fair value of net assets acquired. For significant acquisitions, the Company obtains independent appraisals and valuations of the
intangible (and certain tangible) assets acquired.

The estimates of fair values and useful lives of identified intangible assets are based on many factors, including estimates and
assumptions of future operating performance and cash flows of the acquired business, estimates of cost avoidance, the historical
experience of the Company and the acquired business, the nature of the business acquired and the specific characteristics of the
identified intangible assets. The fair values of these assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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Noncompetition agreements are amortized on a straight-line basis over their stated terms. All estimates used to determine the
fair values and useful lives of identified intangible assets could change due to numerous factors, including (among others) product
demand, market conditions, technological developments, economic conditions and competitor activities. The carrying values and
useful lives of identified intangible assets are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any resulting changes in estimates could have a
material effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

The carrying value of goodwill of each reporting unit is reviewed at least annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate
possible impairment, by comparing the carrying values to the estimated fair values. The estimates of fair values require various
assumptions including the use of projections of future cash flows and discount rates that reflect the risks associated with achieving
the future cash flows. Changes in the underlying business could affect these estimates, which in turn could affect the recoverability
of goodwill. If goodwill becomes impaired, some or all of the goodwill could be written off as a charge to operations, which could
have a material effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations. At December 31, 2002, the Company had
$939.1 million of goodwill and believes that no impairment of goodwill existed. )

In connection with the acquisition of Guardian iT plc (Guardian) in July 2002, the Company accrued $42.9 million related
to closing thirteen facilities (see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Costs for closing leased facilities are
estimated based on the condition and remaining lease term of each facility, the expected closure date and an assessment of rele-
vant market conditions including an estimate of any sub-lease rental income the Company can reasonably expect to obtain given
the market conditions at the time of the acquisition. Costs for closing owned facilities are based on the difference between the
estimated net realizable value of the facility and its carrying value. These estimates are based on an assessment of the condition
of the facility, its location and relevant market conditions. Goodwill could change due to changes of the locations to be closed
(which is based in part on customer input) and finalization of lease valuations. A change in market conditions after the date
of acquisition could change the estimated costs for closing certain leased facilities and could result in a material charge or credit
to operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company's services revenues are largely recurring in nature and come from availability services, processing services, software
support and rentals, professional services and hardware rentals. These revenues are recognized monthly as the services are pro-
vided. The amounts recognized are based upon contractually stated amounts, which may be fixed, variable or a combinartion of
both. Variable fees are based on actual usage, number of users, hours of service provided, number of trades or transactions, or some
similar measure of activity.

The Company’s license and resale fees come from agreements that permit the in-house use of the product and, generally,
provide for professional services and ongoing software support. These revenues are recognized upon the signing of a contract and
delivery of the product if the fee is fixed or determinable and collection is probable. Revenue is recorded over the contract period
when customer payments are extended, or when significant acceptance, technology or service risks exist. Revenue is also recorded
over the contract period when the software is bundled together with computer equipment and other post-delivery services and the
fair value of the separate elements cannot be determined. Revenues from fixed-fee contracts requiring a significant amount of
program modification or customization, installation, systems integration and/or related services are recognized based upon the
estimated percentage of completion. Changes in estimated costs during the course of a contract are reflected in the period in
which the facts become known.

The Company believes that its revenue recognition practices comply with the complex and evolving rules governing revenue
recognition. These rules include the following statements issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA): Statement of Position (SOP) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition;” SOP 98-9, “Modification of SOP 97-2, Software
Revenue Recognition, With Respect to Certain Transactions;” and SOP 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type
and Certain Production-Type Contracts.” The AICPA and its Software Revenue Recognition Task Force continue to issue
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interpretations and guidance for applying the relevant standards to a wide range of sales contract terms and business arrangements
that are prevalent in the software industry. Also, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) has issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin Number 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,” which provides guidance related to revenue recognition
based on interpretations and practices followed by the SEC, and the Emerging Issues Task Force of the Financial Accounting.
Standards Board continues to issue additional guidance on revenue recognition in general. Future interpretations of existing
accounting standards or changes in the Company’s business practices could result in changes in the Company’s revenue recogni-
tion accounting policies that could have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations and business.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain amounts included in the Company’s Conselidated Statements

of Income, the relative percentage that those amounts represent to consolidated revenues (unless otherwise indicated) and the
percentage change in those amounts from period to period. All percentages are calculated using actual amounts rounded to the
nearest thousand.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, BERCEMT OF REVENUES PERCENT

(1 MILLIONS} YZAR GNDED DECEMEER 31, INCREASE (DECREASE)
2002 2001
- 2002 2001 2000, 2002 2007 z@@_@_ygj\nm_v,qJmmﬂ
|} Revenues
E Investment support systems $1,385.9 $1,325.0 $1,177.0 53% 67% 69% 5% 13% \;
| Auvailability services 1,052.5 522.4 411.9 41 26 24 101 27 E
| Other businesses 154.8 134.4 114.2 6 7 7 15 18 [
[ $2,593.2 $1,981.8 $1,703.1 100% 100% 100% 31 16 !
| Costs and Expenses i
' Cost of sales and direct
operating $1,101.8 $ 823.8 $ 697.0 42% 42% 41% 34% 18%
Sales, marketing and
administration 504.7 403.3 3643 19 20 21 25 11
Product development 158.9 172.4 147.3 6 9 9 (8) 17
Depreciation and amortization 203.0 109.0 88.7 8 5 5 86 23
| Amortization of acquisition- i
related intangible assets 65.1 66.9 573 3 3 3 (3) 17 {
Merger costs 12.5 7.2 13.2 1 1 1 73 (45) ;
$2,046.0 $1,582.6 $1,367.8 79% 80% 80% 29 16 !
| Operating Income !l
;; Investment support systems $ 3108 $ 272.6 $ 2381 22% 21% 20% 14% 15% E
i% Availability services " 257.8 147.5 117.7 24 28 29 75 25 :
| Other businesses 29.1 204 15.6 19 15 14 43 30 1
| Corporate administration (38.0) (34.1) (22.9) (1) ) (1) 11 49 |l
; Merger costs (12.5) (7.2) (13.2) (1) (1) (1) 73 (45) 1
[ $ 547.2 $ 399.2 $ 3353 21 20 20 37 19 |

(1) Percent of revenues is calculated as a percent of investment support systems revenues, availability services revenues and revenues from other businesses, respectively.
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain supplemental revenue data, the relative percentage that those
amounts represent to consolidated revenues and the percentage change in those amounts from period to period. All percentages
are calculated using actual amounts rounded to the nearest thousand.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, PERCENT OF REVENUES PERCENT
CIN_MILLIONS) YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 51, INCREASE (DECREASE)
2002 2001
2002, 2001 2000 2002 2003 2000, ¥5, 2003 ws 2000
Investment Support Systems
é Services $1,207.7 $1,121.0 $ 931.2 46% 57% 55% 8% 20%
License and resale fees 149.0 177.8 222.9 6 9 13 (16) (20)
‘; Total products and services 1,356.7 1,298.8 1,154.1 52 66 68 4 13
]‘ Reimbursed expenses 29.2 26.2 22.9 1 1 1 11 14
i( $1,385.9 $1,325.0 $1,177.0 53% 67% 69% 5 13 1‘
! Availability Services ]
Services $1,034.8 $ 5136 $ 404.7 40% 26% 24% 101% 27%
i License and resale fees 15.2 7.7 6.1 1 — — 98 26
Total products and services 1,050.0 521.3 410.8 41 26 24 101 27 !
/| Reimbursed expenses 2.5 1.1 1.1 — — — 125 — i
$1,052.5 $ 522.4 $ 4119 41% 26% 24% 101 27 l‘[
| Other Businesses i
Services $ 926 $ 99 5 652 4% 4% 4% 16%  13%
License and resale fees 31.0 28.6 30.6 1 1 2 8 (6)
Total products and services 123.6 108.5 95.8 5 5 6 14 13
Reimbursed expenses 312 25.9 18.4 1 2 1 21 41
$ 154.8 $ 1344 $ 114.2 6% 7% 7% 15 18
Total Revenues
Services $2,335.1 $1,714.5 $1,401.1 90% 86% 82% 36% 22%
| License and resale fees 195.2 214.1 259.6 8 11 15 ) (18) i
| Toral products and services 2,530.3 1,928.6 1,660.7 98 97 97 31 16 |i
Reimbursed expenses 62.9 53.2 42.4 2 3 3 18 25
$2,593.2 $1,981.8 $1,703.1 100% 100% 100% 31 16

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Overall results for 2002 were slightly above the Company’s expectation. The integration of CAS into AS proceeded faster and
better than expected and more than offset the lower than expected performance of 1SS. The primary reason for ISS performing
below expectation was the impact on 1SS revenue growth of the economic slowdown, especially in the financial services industry.
During 2001, overall results did not meet the Company’s expectation because of the deterioration in the economy throughout the
year and the disruption of normal business patterns caused by the events of September 11.

Assuming neither a rebound nor a further deterioration in demand for the Company’s products and services and assuming no
change in merger costs and other acquisition-related items, the Company expects that the full-year 2003 operating margin will be
somewhat higher than the full-year 2002 operating margin of 21%. The primary reasons for this are the full-year benefit of cost
controls implemented during 2002, the full-year impact of the integration of CAS into AS and, to a lesser extent, the integration
of Guardian into AS. In assessing its expected operating margin for 2003, the Company assumed no change in merger costs and
other acquisition-related items because the timing and magnitude of those items are unpredictable.
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Investment Support Systems (ISS)
The ISS operating margin is 22% in 2002, compared with 21% and 20% in 2001 and 2000, respectively. Despite a $28.8 million,
or 16%, decline in 2002 license and resale fees, the 2002 margin is higher due to the full-year impact of 2001 cost reductions and
additional 2002 cost controls implemented across ISS. Despite a $45.1 million, or 20%, decline in 2001 license and resale fees, the
2001 margin is higher than in 2000 due primarily to increases in services revenues from wealth management systems and broker-
age and trading systems with relatively low incremental costs, 2001 cost controls and the full-year impact of 2000 cost reductions.
The most important factors affecting the ISS operating margin are the impact of the economic slowdown on information
technology spending levels, trading volumes and services revenues, the overall condition of the financial services industry and the
effect of any further consolidation among financial services firms, the timing and magnitude of software license sales, the operating
margins of recently acquired businesses and the level of product development spending. The impact of the economic slowdown
has resulted in an increasing number of customers curtailing or, to a lesser extent, discontinuing their investment or trading activi-
ties, reducing professional services projects, or pursuing contract renegotiations, all of which have an adverse effect on ISS margins.

Availability Services (AS)

The AS operating margin is 24% in 2002, compared with 28% in 2001 and 29% in 2000. The lower margin in 2002 is due
primarily to the initial effect of the significantly lower margins of CAS and Guardian, and the full-year effect of higher costs
resulting from expansion of the Company’s high availability and managed hosting resources in 2001. The lower margin in 2001

is due primarily to the initial effect of the significantly lower margin of CAS and higher costs resulting from expansion of the
Company’s high availability and managed hosting resources, which are net of increases in revenues with relatively low incremental
costs, approximately $6.0 million of nonrecurring disaster-related fees resulting from the events of September 11, and the timing
of equipment upgrades.

The combination of the CAS and Guardian acquisitions more than doubled the size of the AS business, providing the
Company with significant additional expertise, resources and geographic coverage throughout North America and Europe, includ-
ing state-of-the-art facilities and a strong focus in the financial services industry in the areas around New York City and London.
The integration of the CAS operations is substantially complete, with a headcount reduction of approximately 350 positions,
representing about 15% of the combined workforce, in 2001 and the closing of fifteen facilities during 2002. The integration of
the Guardian operations is well underway, with a headcount reduction of approximately 40 positions and the closing of four
facilities in 2002, and an expected additional headcount reduction of 45 positions over the next year as nine additional facilities
are closed (see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). In both the CAS and Guardian integrations, generally all
equipment located at closed facilities is relocated to other facilities, thereby improving the operational resilience and scope of

services available to customers.
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The most important factors affecting the AS operating margin are the rate and value of new contract signings and renewals,
the rate of integration of the Guardian operations, and the timing and magnitude of equipment and facilities expenditures.
Furthermore, there is an emerging trend toward increasing sales of dedicated availability services, where equipment and/or facili-
ties are not shared by multiple customers but rather used exclusively by a single customer. As the Company sells more dedicated
services, which yield lower margins than shared services, there will be a negative impact on AS operating margins, with a
corresponding positive impact on AS revenues.

REVENUES

Total revenues increased $611.4 million and $278.7 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. Revenues of businesses owned for at
least 12 months (internal revenues) increased approximately 1% in 2002 and 7% in 2001. During 2002, internal revenue growth
fluctuated from a high of 3% during the second quarter to a low of negative 1% during the fourth quarter. The lower rate of internal
revenue growth was due primarily to the continued economic slowdown during 2002, During 2001, internal revenue grthh
declined from approximately 12% during the first quarter to approximately 3% during the fourth quarter due primarily to the
economic slowdown and the disruption of normal business patterns caused by the events of September 11.

Services revenues, which are largely recurring in nature, include revenues from availability services, processing services, soft-
ware support and rentals, professional services and hardware rentals. Services revenues increased 36%, 22% and 16% in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively, to $2.3 billion, $1.7 billion and $1.4 billion, respectively, representing approximately 90%, 86% and
82% of total revenues, respectively. The increase in 2002 is due primarily to the full-year impact of the CAS acquisition and six
months of revenue ($76.3 million) from the Guardian acquisition, offset in part by lower professional services revenues in 1SS.
The increase in 2001 is due primarily to revenues from acquired businesses, including $60.4 million from the CAS acquisition, and
increases in revenues from wealth management systems and brokerage and trading systems. Services revenues increased as a per-
centage of total revenues because software license fees declined, largely due to the economic slowdown, and because the revenues
from the CAS and Guardian acquisitions are almost all from services.

Professional services revenues are $358.1 million in 2002, compared to $339.2 million and $282.5 million in 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The increases are due primarily to the addition of professional services revenues from acquired businesses, offset in
part by lower [SS professional services revenues in 2002, due primarily to lower customer spending for new and existing projects.
The increase in 2001 is due primarily to acquired businesses, an increase in professional services revenues from brokerage and
trading systems, and the completion of a large benefit and investor management system conversion, and is net of the effect of
lower professional services revenues in treasury and risk management systems.

Revenues from license and resale fees are $195.2 million, $214.1 million and $259.6 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively, and include software license revenues of $155.4 million, $182.5 million and $228.9 million, respectively. The lower
software license revenues in 2002 and 2001 are due primarily to the economic slowdown resulting in lower customer spending for
new software systems and, in 2001, the disruption of normal business patterns caused by the events of September 11.

Investment Support Systems

ISS revenues increased $60.9 million, or 5%, and $148.0 million, or 13%, in 2002 and 2001, respectively. Internal ISS revenues
decreased approximately 2% in 2002 and increased approximately 5% in 2001. The continued decline in the rate of internal 1SS
revenue growth during 2002 is due primarily to the economic slowdown resulting in lower customer spending across ISS.

In 2002, ISS services revenues increased $86.7 million, or 8%, while ISS license and resale fees decreased $28.8 million, or
16%. The increase in services revenues is due primarily to acquired businesses. Internal ISS professional services revenues declined
$39.3 million across 1SS. Total ISS processing and support revenues grew by about the same amount due to increases in wealth
management systems and investment management systems, net of a decline in brokerage and trading systems. The decrease in
license and resale fees is due primarily to the economic slowdown causing a decline in spending for new systems and therefore
lower software license revenues in most 1SS businesses. The increase in reimbursed expenses is due to reimbursed trading expenses

incurred in the Company’s Brut trading business, which was acquired during 2002.
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In 2001, ISS services revenues increased $189.8 million, or 20%, while ISS license and resale fees decreased $45.1 million, or
20%. The increase in services revenues is due primarily to acquired businesses and growth in wealth management systems and
brokerage and trading systems. These increases are partially offset by lower internal revenues from treasury and risk management
systems. The 2001 decrease in license and resale fees was widespread, affecting most ISS businesses.

Availability Services
AS revenues increased $530.1 million, or 101%, and $110.5 million, or 27%, in 2002 and 2001, respectively. Internal AS
revenues increased approximately 7% and 12% in 2002 and 2001, respectively. The slowing rate of internal AS revenue growth is
due primarily to ongoing efforts to renew shorter-term CAS contracts at lower monthly fees in exchange for longer contractual
commitments, and to the continuing development of more varied and affordable alternatives for dedicated high-availability serv-
ices, including those which may be used by larger customers to adopt internal solutions for part or all of their needs. In addition,
the continued economic slowdown has resulted in lower capital spending by customers, which lessens demand and in turn intensi-
fies competition and pricing pressures. The 2001 increase is due to $60.4 million of CAS revenues, new contract signings and
renewals, and continued growth in demand for midrange platforms, network services and work-group recovery. AS revenues in
2001 include approximately $6.0 million of nonrecurring disaster-related fees resulting from the events of September 11.
Compared to the historical AS customer base, the acquired CAS customer base had a greater concentration of revenue in
a smaller number of accounts and a shorter average remaining contract term and, while the acquired Guardian customer base
has average revenue per customer that is similar to the historical AS customer base, the acquired Guardian customer base also
has a shorter average remaining contract term. Consequently, the amount and percentage of annual AS revenues that are subject
to renewal significantly increased compared to the period before these acquisitions. These factors, coupled with the continued
economic slowdown, result in increased competition, especially for the largest accounts, which intensifies pricing pressures
(particularly when renewing or extending customer contracts) and results in lower revenues and operating margins.

Other Businesses

Revenues from Other Businesses increased $20.4 million, or 15%, in 2002, and $20.2 million, or 18%, in 2001. The increase in
2002 is due primarily to an increase in revenues from public sector systems. The increase in revenues in 2001 is due to an increase
in services revenues, offset in part by a $2.0 million decline in software license and resale fees.

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Total costs and expenses as a percentage of revenues are relatively consistent during 2002, 2001 and 2000, with a slight decline in
2002 due primarily to the full-year impact of cost controls implemented in 2001 and the integration of CAS into the AS business.
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Sales, marketing and administrative costs declined as a percentage of total revenues to 19% during 2002 from 20% and 21%
during 2001 and 2000, respectively. The declining percentage is due to cost controls and lower sales costs caused by slowing
revenue growth.

Since AS product development costs are insignificant, it is more meaningful to measure product development costs as a
percentage of revenues from [SS and Other Businesses. In 2002, product development costs declined to 10% of revenues from ISS
and Other Businesses, compared to 12% and 11% in 2001 and 2000, respectively. The decline in 2002 is due to lower spending
across ISS and, to a lesser extent, $3.9 million of additional costs capitalized. Gross development costs capitalized are $15.4
million, $11.5 million and $10.2 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase in capitalized costs in 2002 is due to
development projects related to the integration of certain ISS systems and straight-through processing initiatives. Amortization of
previously capitalized development costs, included in depreciation and amortization, is $6.9 million in 2002 and $6.3 million in
both 2001 and 2000, resulting in net capitalized development costs of $8.5 million, $5.2 million and $3.9 million in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization increased to 8% of total revenues, compared to 5% in both 2001 and 2000. The increase is
due to the full-year impact of the CAS acquisition and, to a lesser extent, six months of depreciation and amortization of the
Guardian assets and additions of computer and telecommunications equipment, especially in AS.

Anmortization of all acquisition-related intangible assets totaled $65.1 million, $66.9 million and $57.4 million in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively ($0.14, $0.16 and $0.14 per diluted share, respectively). The slight decline in 2002 is due to the elimina-
tion of goodwill amortization required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Number 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142 — see Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements), offset in part by an increase in
intangible amortization from current year acquisitions and the full-year impact of 2001 acquisitions. Amortization of goodwill
totaled $21.5 million and $16.9 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively ($0.06 and $0.05 per dilured share, respectively). Under
SFAS 142, all goodwill amortization for all acquisitions stopped on January 1, 2002, and there is no amortization of goodwill for
acquisitions completed between July 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 (including the Company’s acquisition of CAS). For acquisi-
tions completed before July 1, 2001, goodwill amortization continued through December 31, 2001 using the straight-line method
over periods ranging from five to thirty years.

As explained in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company recorded merger costs of $12.5 million,
$7.2 million and $13.2 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively ($0.03, $0.02 and $0.03 per diluted share, respectively).
During 2001, the Company also recorded an $11.9 million write-off ($0.03 per diluted share) of a minority investment in a con-
sulting business due to a significant deterioration in the business and certain preferences granted to new investors of the business.

Interest income decreased $18.4 million in 2002 due primarily to the use of cash in the fourth quarter of 2001 to complete the
CAS acquisition and, to a lesser extent, lower interest rates earned on cash balances. Interest income increased $3.0 million in
2001 due primarily to a $1.4 million gain on the sale of short-term investments, the proceeds of which were used to fund the CAS
acquisition, a $0.9 million gain on the sale of a minority investment in common stock that was acquired in connection with a
1999 acquisition, and higher average cash and short-term investment balances, partially offset by lower interest rates.

Interest expense increased $9.4 million and $1.4 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively, due primarily to debt incurred in
connection with financing the CAS acquisition during the fourth quarter of 2001.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2002, cash and equivalents are $439.7 million, an increase of $43.4 million from December 31, 2001. Cash flow
from operations increased 64%, reaching $782.0 million or 2.4 times net income in 2002, a significant increase over 2001 and
2000 when cash flow from operations was 1.9 times and 1.5 times net income, respectively. The significant improvement in 2002
is the result of larger depreciation and amortization charges and a significant one-time reduction in the initial working capital of
the acquired CAS business. The Company expects that in 2003 the ratio of cash flow from operations to net income will return
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to pre-2002 levels. In 2002, the Company used its operating cash flow to repay $389.8 million of debt, to acquire nine businesses
for $236.4 million (net of cash acquired), and to obtain property, equipment and software totaling $158.0 million from capital
spending. At December 31, 2002, the Company has $18.1 million of short-term debt and $188.0 million of long-term debt, while
stockholders’ equity exceeds $2.2 billion. Capital spending in 2003 could increase to approximately $200.0 million due primarily
to the planned expansion of certain AS facilities.

At December 31, 2002, certain of the Company’s contractual obligations for each of the years ended follow (in millions):

; TOTAN 20032 2004=-2005 _A00E=2007 A L\ID_é\f%\'ﬁggﬁ
| |
L Short-term and long-term debt $206.1 $ 18.1 $184.5 $ 2.6 $ 09 ‘i
‘“ Operating leases 671.9 125.2 193.8 127.4 2255 |
| Pending acquisition 75.0 75.0 — — — E
|

§ $953.0 $218.3 $378.3 $130.0 $226.4
z

In addition, the Company has contingent purchase price obligations over the next three vears for previously completed acquisi-
tions that total approximately $126.0 million, subject to the operating performance of the acquired businesses. The maximum
amount due within the next year is $99.0 million. The Company also has outstanding letters of credit and bid bonds that total
$24.4 million. After December 31, 2002, the Company signed certain acquisition agreements that will result in estimated cash
payments of approximately $279.4 million upon closing. The Company does not participate in, nor has it created, any off-balance
sheet special purpose entities or other off-balance sheet arrangements, other than operating leases.

The Company expects that its existing cash resources and cash generated from operations for the foreseeable future will be
sufficient to meet its operating requirements, debt repayments, contingent payments in connection with business acquisitions and
ordinary capital spending needs. At December 31, 2002, the Company has an unused $325.0 million revolving credit agreement
and believes that it has the capacity to secure additional credit or issue equity to finance additional capital needs. The Company
anticipates that it may need to borrow some portion of the $325.0 million available under its revolving credit agreement to
complete certain acquisitions during 2003. See Notes 2 and 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

MARKET RISK

The Company has rarely used derivative financial instruments to manage risk exposures and has never used derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Available cash is invested in short-term, highly liquid financial instruments, with
a substantial portion of such investments having initial maturities of three months or less, and, in connection with the acquisi-
tions of CAS and Guardian, the Company borrowed cash under the terms of its variable-rate credit facility. While changes in
interest rates could decrease interest income or increase interest expense, the Company does not believe that it has a material
exposure to changes in interest rates. Based on borrowings under the credit facility of $175.0 million at December 31, 2002, a 1%
change in the borrowing rate would increase annual interest expense related to the credit facility by $1.75 million.

During 2002, approximately 20% of revenues are from customers outside the United States. Of these revenues, approximately
71% is from Europe and 11% is from Canada. The Company generally matches local currency revenues with local currency
costs for its foreign operations. The majority of this revenue is denominated in the British pound or the Euro. The Company
continues to monitor its exposure to foreign exchange rates as a result of its recent acquisitions and ongoing changes in its
operations. The Company does not believe that it has a material exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
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CERTAIN RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Statements about the Company’s expected margins, revenues and spending and all other statements in this Annual Report other
than historical facts are forward-looking statements. These statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that may change at
any time, and, therefore, actual results may differ materially from expected results. Forward-locking statements include informa-
tion about possible or assumed future financial results of the Company and usually contain words such as “believes,” “intends,”

" i«

“expects,” “anticipates,” or similar expressions. The Company derives most of its forward-looking statements from its operating
budgets and forecasts, which are based upon many detailed assumptions. While the Company believes that its assumptions are
reasonable, it cautions that there are inherent difficulties in predicting certain important factors, such as: the effect of general
economic conditions on information technology spending levels, trading volumes and services revenues; the overall condition of
the financial services industry and the effect of any further consolidation among financial services firms; the effect of war, terror-
ism or catastrophic events; the timing and magnitude of software sales; the timing and scope of technological advances, including
those resulting in more alternatives for dedicated high-availability services; the integration and performance of acquired busi-
nesses, including the availability services business of Guardian, acquired on July 1, 2002; the satisfaction of conditions to closing
of pending acquisitions; the prospects for future acquisitions; the ability to attract and retain customers and key personnel; and
the ability to obtain patent protection and avoid patent-related liabilities in the context of a rapidly developing legal framework
for software and business-method patents. The factors described in this paragraph and other factors that may affect SunGard,

its business or future financial results, as and when applicable, are discussed in the Company’s filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, including its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, a copy of which may be obtained from
SunGard without charge.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 37,

pAFXTL"&OQUSJN&"D.SJ_EKQEE_WE)?;SJMI&WLO‘UJ}UES) 2002 2007 —{clelel
Revenues:
Services $2,335,093 $1,714,549 $1,401,081
License and resale fees 195,222 214,124 259,627
Total products and services 2,530,315 1,928,673 1,660,708
Reimbursed expenses 62,922 53,164 42,388
2,593,237 1,981,837 1,703,096
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales and direct operating 1,101,839 823,895 696,984
Sales, marketing and administration 504,737 403,252 364,334
Product development 158,844 172,425 147,277
Depreciation and amorzization 202,963 108,972 88,708
Anmortization of acquisition-related intangible assets 65,098 66,860 57,354
Merger costs 12,523 7,223 13,1717
2,046,004 1,582,627 1,367,834
Income from operations 547,233 399,210 335,262
Interest income 8,408 26,793 23,745
Interest expense (13,074) (3,641) (2,241)
Other income 730 — —_
Loss on write-off of investment — (11,890) —
Income before income taxes 543,297 410,472 356,766
Income taxes 217,656 164,417 143,794
Net income $ 325,641 $ 246,055 $ 212,972
Basic net income per commmon share $ 1.15 $ 0.89 $ 0.81
Shares used to compute basic net income per common share 282,420 276,057 264,264
Diluted net income per common share $ 1.12 $ 0.86 $ 0.78
Shares used to compute diluted net income per common share 289,654 285,112 271,404

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 3%,

AN THOUSAMDS L EXCERT PER-SHAREAMOUMTS) 2002 2001
Assets
Current:
Cash and equivalents $ 439,735 $ 396,320
Trade receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $42,999 and $36,951 518,390 524,735
Earned but unbilled receivables i 48,158 52,709
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 80,820 97,569
Deferred income taxes 47,913 46,871
Total current assets 1,135,016 1,118,204
Property and equipment, less accumulated depreciation of $621,994 and $453,464 566,199 544,538
Software products, less accumulated amortization of $271,753 and $220,453 132,083 140,459
Customer base, less accumulated amortization of $110,031 and $80,422 343,973 262,619
Other tangible and intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of $19,035
and $20,625 12,707 68,455
Deferred income taxes 92,568 142,418
Goodwill 939,050 621,465
$3,281,596 $2,898,158
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current:
Short-term and current portion of long-term debt $ 18,128 $ 103,157
Accounts payable 59,946 38,981
Accrued compensation and benefits 137,362 132,691
Other accrued expenses 203,696 98,777
Accrued income taxes 25,290 23,732
Deferred revenues 426,811 351,490
Total current liabilities 871,233 748,828
Long-term debt 187,964 355,474

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 13)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; 5,000 shares authorized, of which
3,200 is designated as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock — —
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; 800,000 shares authorized; 283,796

and 281,422 shares issued 2,838 2,814
Capital in excess of par value 801,936 763,407
Restricted stock plans (2,324) (3,514)
Retainied earnings 1,396,680 1,071,039
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 23,965 (25,179)

2,223,095 1,808,567
Treasury stock, at cost, 58 and 650 shares (696) (14,711)

Total stockholders’ equity 2,222,399 1,793,856

$3,281,596 $2,898,158

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2002

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

ORI OUS AMNDR). 2007 20060
Cash Flow From Operations
Net income $ 325,641 $ 246,055 $ 212,972
Reconciliation of net income to cash flow from operations:
Depreciation and amortization 268,061 175,832 146,062
Loss on write-off of investment — 11,890 —
Purchased in-process research and development — — 10,421
Other noncash credits (3,971) (12,913) (9,784)
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) 44523 (11,545) 10,292
Accounts receivable and other current assets 146,233 (51,878) (67,107)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,904 35,800 16,369
Deferred revenues (4,420) 82,362 6,046
Cash flow from operations 781,971 475,603 325271
Financing Activities
Cash received from stock option and award plans 45,669 61,813 45,848
Cash received from borrowings, net of fees 56,216 451,586 25
Cash used to repay debt (445,974) (24,770) (9,318)
Cash paid for treasury stock — — (14,711)
Total financing activities (344,089) 488,629 21,844
Investment Activities
Cash paid for acquired businesses, net of cash acquired (236,433) (879,593) (172,244)
Cash paid for property and equipment (121,293) (102,103) (98,881)
Cash paid for software and other assets (36,741) (39,412) (31,821)
Cash paid to purchase short-term investments — (183,433) (170,598)
Cash received from sale of investment in common stock — 16,057 —
Cash received from sales and maturities of short-term investments — 364,737 95,274
Total investment activities (394,467) (823,747) (378,270)
Increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 43,415 140,485 (31,155)
Beginning cash and equivalents 396,320 255,835 286,990
Ending cash and equivalents $ 439,735 $ 396,320 $ 255,835
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

UM _THOUSAMDS) 2002 2007 2000

Supplemental Information
Interest paid $ 13,582 $ 3,407 $ 1,959

Income taxes paid $ 155962 $133,195 $116,997

Acquired businesses:

Property and equipment $ 78574 $326,718 $ 2,843
Software products 12,235 6,303 56,582
Purchased in-process research and development — — 10,421
Customer base 102,995 213,193 11,353
Goodwill 299,663 347,483 102,767
Other tangible and intangible assets 22,037 15,823 22,602
Deferred income taxes (3,508) 13,153 (1,069)
Purchase price obligations and debt assumed (134,972) (17,127) (9,943)
Net current liabilities assumed (140,591) (11,490) (20,813)
Common stock issued and net equity acquired in

poolings of interests — (14,463) (2,499)

Cash paid for acquired businesses, net of cash acquired
of $48,483, $6,197 and $1,055 in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively $ 236,433 $879,593 $172,244

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

PREFERRED STOCK

COMMON STOCK

NUMBER
OF SEARES

NUMBER

OF SHARES ______ RAR MALUE

Balances, December 31, 1999

Pooling of interests
Comprehensive income:

Net income

Foreign currency trarslation

Unrealized losses on investments (net of income taxes of $14,040)
Total comprehensive income
Deferred income tax benefit resulting from the ASC acquisition
Purchase of common stock
Shares issued under stock plans
Compensation expense and note repayments related to stock plans
Options earned under long-term incentive plan
Income tax benefit arising from employee stock options

Balances, December 31, 2000

Pooling of interests
Comprehensive income:

Net income

Foreign currency translation

Unrealized gain on investments (net of income taxes of $1,980)
Total comprehensive income
Two-for-one common stock split
Pre-acquisition distributions
Deferred income tax benefit resulting from the ASC acquisition
Shares issued under stock plans
Compensation expense and note repayments related to stock plans
Income tax benefit arising from employee stock options

Balances, December 31, 2001

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Foreign currency translation
Total comprehensive income
Shares issued under stock plans
Shares returned under restricted stock plan
Compensation expense related to stock plans
Income tax benefit arising from employee stock options

Balances, December 31, 2002

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

128,505
2,227

$1,285
22

133,654
4,138

139,407

4,223

1,337
41

281,422

283,796
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ACCUMULATED OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

TREASURY STOCK

RESTRICTED
STOCK PLANS UNREALIZED
AMD NOTES GAINS
CAPITAL 1N RECEIVABLE FOREIGN (LOSSES) ON
EXCESS OF FROM COMMON RETAINED CURRENCY MARKETABLE NUMBER
rEARJ(AkUF STOCK _FASRUMGS____ TRAMSLATION__ SECURITUES. __  _ OF SHARES COST. JO_'IAKJ
$591,998 $(1,768)  $ 608,519 $(11,665) $ 22,398 — — $1,210,767
4,376 — (1,424) (427) — — — 2,547
— — 212972 — — — —
— — — (6.912) — — —
— — — — (26,074) - —
179,986
805 — — — — — — 805
— — — — — (325) (14,711) (14,711)
45,604 — — — - - - 45,634
— 827 — — — — — 827
4472 — — — — - — 4,472
12,149 — — — — — — 12,149
659,404 (941) 820,067 (19,004) (3,676) (325) (14,711) 1,442,476
9315 — 5,107 — — — — 14,463
— — 246,055 — — — —
— — — (6,175) — — —
— — — — 3,676 — —
143,556
(1,394) — — - — (325) — —
— — (190) - — — — (190)
8,449 — - — — — — 8,449
66,039 (3,445) —_ — — — — 62,636
— 872 — — — — — 872
21,594 — — — — — — 21,594
763,407 (3,514) 1,071,039 (25,179) — (650) (14,711) 1,793,856
— — 325,641 — — — —
— — — 49,144 — — —
374,785
31,303 (473) - — — 620 14,015 44,869
— 800 — — — (28) — 800
- 863 - - - — — 863
7,226 — — — — — — 7,226
$801,936 $(2,324)  $1,396,680 $ 23,965 $  — (58) (696)  $2,222,399
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

cant Accounting Policies

]
=a

ONE / Summery of Sign?’

Basis of Presentation

SunGard Data Systems Inc. (the Company) has three segments: Investment Support Systems (ISS), Availability Services (AS)
and Other Businesses. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make numerous estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. The Company evaluates its estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis and revises them when
necessary or appropriate. Actual results may differ from the original or revised estimates.

The Company amortizes identifiable intangible assets, including software product costs, over periods that it believes approxi-
mate the related useful lives of those assets based upon estimated future operating results and cash flows of the underlying business
operations. The Company closely monitors estimates of those lives. Those estimates could change due to numerous factors,
including product demand, market conditions, technological developments, ecanomic conditions and competitor activities.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates services revenues from availability services, processing services, software support and rentals, professional
services and hardware rentals. These revenues are recognized monthly as the services are provided. The amounts recognized are
based upon contractually stated amounts, which may be fixed, variable or a combination of both. Variable fees are based on actual
usage, number of users, hours of service provided, number of trades or transactions, or some similar measure of activity.

The Company’s license and resale fees come from agreements that permit the in-house use of the product and, generally,
provide for professional services and ongoing software support. These revenues are recognized upon the signing of a contract and
delivery of the product if the fee is fixed or determinable and collection is probable. Revenue is recorded over the contract period
when customer payments are extended, or when significant acceptance, technology or service risks exist. Revenue is also recorded
over the contract period when the software is bundled together with computer equipment and other post-delivery services and the
fair value of the separate elements cannot be determined. Revenues from fixed-fee contracts requiring a significant amount of pro-
gram modification or custcmization, installation, systems integration and/or related services are recognized based upon the
estimated percentage of completion. Changes in estimated costs during the course of a contract are reflected in the period in
which the facts become known.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force Number 01-14, “Income Statement
Characterization of Reimbursements Received for ‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses Incurred” (EITF 01-14), which requires that reim-
bursements received for out-of-pocket expenses be classified as revenues and not as cost reductions. Before the effective date
of EITF 01-14, the Company netted customer reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses against the applicable costs that included
postage, travel, meals and certain telecommunication costs. EITF 01-14 requires testatement of previously reported amounts in
order to reflect reimbursed expenses as both revenues and costs. These costs are generally included in cost of sales and direct
operating expenses. While the adoption of EITF 01-14 has no impact on income from operations or net income, it does reduce
total operating margins since both revenues and costs increase by the same amount.

Cash and Equivalents
Cash equivalents consist of commercial paper and other investments that are readily convertible into cash and have original

maturities of three months or less.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of temporary cash and short-
term investments and accounts receivable. By policy, the Company places its available cash and short-term investments with
institutions of high credit-quality and limits the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer. The Company sells a significant
portion of its products and services to the financial services industry and could be affected directly by the overall condition of that
industry. The Company believes that any credit risk associated with accounts receivable is substantially mitigated by the relatively
large number of customer accounts and reasonably short collection terms. Accounts receivable is stated at estimated net realizable
value, which approximates fair value.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets (two to eight years for equipment and ten to forty years for buildings and improvements). Leasehold
improvements are amortized ratably over their remaining lease term or useful life, if shorter.

Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currency of each of the Company’s foreign operations is the local currency of the country in which the operation
is headquartered. All assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date.
Revenues and expenses are translated using average exchange rates during the period.

Increases and decreases in net assets resulting from foreign currency translation are reflected in stockholders’ equity as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Software Products

Product development costs are expensed as incurred and consist primarily of design and development costs of new products and
significant enhancements to existing products incurred before the establishment of technological feasibility. Costs associated with
purchased software, software obtained through business acquisitions, and new products and enhancements to existing products
that meet technological feasibility and recoverability tests are capitalized and amortized over the estimated useful lives of the
related products, generally five to ten years, using the straight-line method or the ratio of current revenues to current and antici-
pated revenues from such software, whichever provides the greater amortization.

Gross development costs capitalized for new products and enhancements to existing products totaled $15.4 million, $11.5
million and $10.2 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Amortization of previously capitalized development costs,
included in depreciation and amortization, are $6.9 million in 2002 and $6.3 million in both 2001 and 2000, resulting in net
capitalized development costs of $8.5 million, $5.2 million and $3.9 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Amortization
of all software products aggregated $50.9 million, $42.5 million and $37.5 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, tespectively. In 2002
and 2001, amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets includes expenses of $5.0 million and $1.6 million, respectively, for
the impairment of certain acquired 1SS software products.

Customer Base Intangible Assets
Customer base intangible assets represent customer contracts and relationships obtained as part of acquired businesses and are
amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, ranging from four to nineteen years.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired. The Company has reviewed the carrying value
of goodwill of each reporting unit by comparing the carrying values to the estimated fair values and determined that the carrying
values of goodwill did not exceed the respective fair values. This comparison must be performed annually or more frequently

if circumstances indicate possible impairment. The estimate of fair value requires various assumptions including the use of
projections of future cash flows and discount rates that reflect the risks associated with achieving the future cash flows. Changes '
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in the underlying business could affect these estimates, which in turn could affect the recoverability of goodwill. If goodwill
becomes impaired, some or all of the goodwill could be written off as a charge to operations. At December 31, 2002, the Company
had $939.1 million of goodwill and believes that no impairment of goodwill existed.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Number 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142) addresses,
among other things, how goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets should be accounted for after they have been initially
recorded in the financial statements. Under SFAS 142, all goodwill amortization for all acquisitions stopped on January 1, 2002,
and there is no amortization of goodwill for acquisitions completed between July 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 including the
Company’s acquisition of the Comdisco, Inc. availability solutions business (CAS). For acquisitions completed before July 1, 2001,
goodwill amortization continued through December 31, 2001 using the straight-line method over periods ranging from five to
thirty years.

As described above, there is no goodwill amortization during 2002 and partial goodwill amortization during 2001. Adjusted net
income and the effect of goodwill amortization on diluted net income per common share as if SFAS 142 had been in effect from
the beginning of each of the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 follows (in thousands, except per-share amounts):

1 200 2000 _

! - |
\ Net income, as reported . $246,055 $212,972 ‘]'
Goodwill amortization 21,512 16,940 \“
‘ Income tax effect of deductible goodwill (3,659) (3,063) &
\ Goodwill amortization, net of tax 17,853 13,877 ()
" Adjusted net income $263,908 $226,849 M
‘ | Basic net income per share, as reported $ 089 $ 0811
[! Goodwill amortization, net of tax 0.07 0.05 ‘\
i} Adjusted basic net income per share $ 096 $ 0.86 i
i = ‘ l
‘\ Diluted net income per share, as reported $ 086 $ 078 “‘
“’ Goodwill amortization, net of tax 0.07 0.06 i\‘
{j Adjusted diluted net income per share $ 093 $ 084 1
r H

Changes in goodwill by segment during the year ended December 31, 2002 follow (in thousands):
OTHER
SRS A8 RUSIMESSES TOTA

‘i Balances at December 31, 2001 $258,324 $330,326 $32,815 $621,465 ’;
I 2002 acquisitions 62,247 245,138 — 307,385 l\
J Adjustments to previous acquisitions (304) (7,426) 8 (7,722} ]|
\{ Foreign currency effect 975 16,947 — 17,922 “
|| Balances at December 31, 2002 $321,242 $584,985 $32,823 $939,050 .‘
ll = : 4
L 3
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Other Tangible and Intangible Assets
Other tangible and intangible assets consist primarily of noncompetition agreements obtained in business acquisitions, long-term
accounts receivable, prepayments and long-term investments. Noncompetition agreements are amortized using the straight-line
method over their stated terms, ranging from two to five years. Long-term investments consist of four seats on the New York Stock
Exchange used in ISS and a $3.0 million ISS minority-interest investment. During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company wrote
off its $11.9 million AS minority-interest investment in a consulting business because of significant deterioration in the business
and certain preferences granted in the fourth quarter of 2001 to new third-party investors in the business.

Based on amounts recorded at December 31, 2002, total estimated amortization of all acquisition-related intangible assets
during each of the years ended December 31 follows (in thousands):

[ 2003 $62,600 |

‘ 2004 54,800 |
| 2005 43,300 |

j 2006 ' 37,400 1
Il 2007 28,600

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion Number 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” in
accounting for its stock option and award plans. Accordingly, compensation expense has been recorded for its restricted stock
awards and no expense has been recorded for its other stock-based plans. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Number
123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS 123), changes the method for recognition of cost of stock option and
award plans. Adoption of the cost recognition requirements under SFAS 123 is optional; however, the following supplemental
information is provided for each of the years ended December 31 (in thousands, except per-share amounts):

_2002 2003 2000,

!
|

} Net income, as reported (including stock-based employee compensation

‘ costs, net of tax of $520, $478 and $361, respectively) $325,641 $246,055 $212,972

/| Additional stock-based employee compensation costs under SFAS 123,

| netof tax (54,363) (35,431) (22,678)
1| Pro forma net income $271,278 $210,624 $190,294 !

|

Pro forma net income per common share:

|| Basic $ 096 $ 076 5 om !
| Diluted $ 094 $ 074 $ 070 ]
= J

The weighted-average fair value of the options granted during 2002, 2001 and 2000 is estimated to be $17.26, $15.47 and
$10.23 per share, respectively, on the date of grant, representing 57%, 56% and 59%, respectively, of the weighted-average market
value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The fair value of options granted is determined using the Black-
Scholes pricing model with the following assumptions: volatility of 52%, 48% and 54% in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively;
expected term of six years (nine and one-half years for unvested performance accelerated stock options); risk-free interest rate of
3.1%, 4.7% and 5.0% in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively; and no dividend yield. The effects of applying SFAS 123 in this pro
forma disclosure are not necessarily indicative of the impact on future years since the Company anticipates that additional options
will be granted in future years.
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Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred income tax assets and liabilities based upon the expected future tax consequences of events
that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are calculated based
on the difference between the financial and tax bases of assets and liabilities using the currently enacted income tax rates in effect

during the years in which the differences are expected to reverse.
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Purchase Transactions

The Company seeks to grow through both internal development and the acquisition of businesses that broaden or complement its
existing product lines. During 2002, the Company completed eight acquisitions in ISS and one acquisition in AS. Gross cash paid
is $284.9 million, subject to certain adjustments. Goodwill recorded in connection with these acquisitions is $307.4 million.

During 2001, the Company completed four acquisitions in ISS, one acquisition in AS and one acquisition in Other Businesses.
Gross cash paid is $885.8 million, subject to certain adjustments. Goodwill recorded in connection with these acquisitions is
$347.5 million.

During 2000, the Company completed nine acquisitions in ISS. Gross cash paid is $172.7 million, subject to certain adjust-
ments. Goodwill recorded in connection with these acquisitions is $102.1 million.

The results of operations of all of these acquired businesses have been included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements
of Income from the date of acquisition. Pro forma combined results of operations are not presented, other than in connection
with the acquisitions of Guardian iT plc (Guardian) and CAS as shown below, since the results of operations as reported in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income would not be materially different.

In connection with certain previously acquired businesses, a total of up to $126.0 million could be paid as additional considera-
tion over the next three years contingent upon the future operating performance of those businesses. The amount paid, if any, will
be recorded as additional goodwill at the time the actual performance is known and the amounts become due. During 2000, the
Company paid $0.6 million as additional consideration based upon the operating performance of businesses previously acquired.
No such amounts were earned or paid in 2002 or 2001.

Acquisitions of Guardian and CAS

At December 31, 2002, the purchase-price allocation to the Guardian assets acquired and liabilities assumed is preliminary. The
amounts allocated to property and equipment are based on preliminary conclusions resulting from independent inventories and
appraisals, and the amounts allocated to contracts and customer base (to be amortized over 12.5 years) are based on preliminary
conclusions from independent appraisals, which include an analysis of the business and expected cash flows. The purchase-price
allocation will be completed upon finalization of facility closure plans, which are based in part on customer input, along with
finalization of the customer base valuation, property lease valuations and fixed asset inventories and appraisals. The preliminary
purchase-price allocation of the Guardian acquisition follows {in thousands):
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| 7
ll Cash paid (net of cash acquired of $36,893) $139,397 ‘H
i Liabilities assumed: !1
Debt, primarily capital lease obligations 121,349 ‘
l Accounts payable 39,953 ,%
| Accrued compensation and benefits 7,028 |
Accrued expenses 72,322 “
Deferred revenues 69,444 \
Deferred income taxes 7,053 1[
| Cash paid plus liabilities assumed $456,746 Sg
‘f Assets acquired:
;[ Accounts receivable $ 35237 |
! Prepaid expenses and other current assets 18,566 5
]l Property and equipment 80,057 i
’ Customer base 73,000 |
w’; Other assets 4,748 ‘,{
| Goodwill 245,138 \ |
h Total assets acquired $456,746 J]l

In connection with the integration of the Guardian business into AS, the Company accrued as a cost of the acquisition and as
part of goodwill approximately $34.2 million and $4.0 million for the estimated costs of closing Guardian facilities and reducing
Guardian headcount, respectively. The estimated costs for headcount reductions related to the Company’s existing employees and
closing certain of the Company’s existing facilities, totaling $9.5 million, are included in merger costs for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The Company has reduced headcount by approximately 40 and closed four facilities in 2002, and expects an
additional headcount reduction of 45 over the next year as nine additional facilities are closed. The facility closure accrual relates
primarily to the remaining lease obligations for the thirteen facilities, and will be paid over their remaining lease terms, which
extend through March 2017, or until a facility is sublet.

In connection with the integration of the CAS business into AS, the Company accrued as a cost of the acquisition and as part
of goodwill approximately $17.3 million for the estimated costs of closing CAS facilities and reducing CAS headcount. The esti-
mated costs for headcount reductions related to the Company's existing employees and closing certain of the Company's existing
facilities, totaling $5.9 million, are included in merger costs for the year ended December 31, 2001. The Company reduced head-
count by approximately 350 in late December 2001 and closed fifteen facilities during 2002. The remaining facility closure accrual
relates primarily to the remaining lease obligations for the closed facilities and will be paid over their remaining lease terms, which
extend through 2005, or until a facility is sublet.

In both the CAS and Guardian integrations, generally all equipment located at closed facilities is relocated to other facilities,
thereby improving the operational resilience and scope of services available to customers.
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The activity relating to severance and facility closure accruals in connection with the CAS and Guardian acquisitions follows

(in thousands):

SEMERANCRE _____ FACHATES ____ TOTAL

T

(| Accrued at November 15, 2001 related to CAS acquisition
Payments

Accrued at December 31, 2001
Changes in estimates

\
]
J\
}
[
Hk ayments
{
i
(( Accrued at July 1, 2002 related to Guardian acquisition
lJ Changes in estimates
|| Effect of foreign currency translation
‘l Payments
}‘ Accrued at December 31, 2002
'

|

$ 12,878 $10,305 $ 23,183 [‘
(741) — a41) |
12,137 10,305 22,442 {g
1,434 (2,042) (608) I
(13,571) (2,593) (16,164) J‘
_ 5,670 5,670 JI
4,268 44,474 48,742 I
549 (1,624) (1,075) ||

121 1,763 1,884 }*
(2,643) (100) (2,743) \[

$ 2,295 $50,183 $ 52,478 M

==

Pro Forma Financial Information

On July 1, 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the outstanding shares of Guardian. The purchase

price values Guardian at approximately $272.8 mililion, consisting of $85.5 million for the shares of Guardian, plus $187.3 million

of Guardian bank debt and finance lease obligations. The Company repaid Guardian's previously existing bank debt upon consum-

mation of the acquisition and repaid most of Guardian’s remaining finance lease obligations after the acquisition. On November

15, 2001, the Company acquired CAS for a cash payment of $852.3 million. The following unaudited pro forma combined results

of operations is provided for illustrative purposes only and assumes that these two acquisitions occurred on January 1, 2001. This

unaudited pro forma information (in thousands, except per-share amounts) should not be relied upon as necessarily being indica-

tive of the historical results that would have been obtained if these acquisitions had actually occurred on that date, nor of the

results that may be obtained in the future.

: 2002 mcu
| Revenues $2,668,810 $2,584 473W
}I Net income 305,244 98,125 ‘
| Diluted net income per common share, as reported 1.12 0.86 H
E Pro forma diluted net income per common share '
J

1.05 0.34 ’

Merger Costs

During 2002, the Company recorded $12.5 million ($8.3 million after tax; $0.03 per diluted share) for merger costs. These costs

include $9.5 million in connection with closing facilities and severance costs incurred in the Guardian acquisition, and $4.2 mil-

lion related to the Company's share of merger costs associated with its equity interests in Brut LLC (Brut) and Guardian before

the Company acquired 100% of the equity of each company, and are net of a $1.2 million reduction in expenses accrued in 2001
in connection with closing facilities and severance costs incurred in the CAS acquisition. Also during 2002, the Company

recorded other income of $0.7 million (less than $0.01 per diluted share) related to a $3.0 million gain on foreign currency pur-

chased to fund the Guardian acquisition, offset in part by a $2.3 million loss representing the Company's share of equity interests

in Guardian before the Company acquired 100% of the equity of Guardian.
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During 2001, the Company recorded $7.2 million ($5.9 million after tax; $0.02 per diluted share) for merger costs. These costs
include $4.0 million primarily for nondeductible investment banking, legal and accounting fees incurred in connection with a
pooling-of-interests transaction and $5.9 million in connection with closing facilities and severance costs incurred in the CAS
acquisition, and are offset in part by a $2.7 million break-up fee received by the Company, net of costs incurred, in connection
with the Company’s attempted acquisition of Bridge Information Systems Inc.

During 2000, the Company recorded $13.2 million ($8.5 million after tax; $0.03 per diluted share) for merger costs. These
costs include $10.4 million ($6.3 million after tax; $0.02 per diluted share) for purchased in-process research and development in
connection with the acquisitions of the Risk and Exposure Management business of GE Information Services, Inc. and of Global
Information Solutions Ltd. This charge equals approximately 8% of the total cash paid and represents, as of the respective dates
of acquisition, the value of software products still in development, but not considered to have reached technological feasibility
or to have any alternative future use. The amounts allocated to purchased in-process research and development are based on
independent appraisals, which include an analysis of the businesses and expected cash flows, along with the risks associated
with completing the development projects and attaining the expected cash flows. The remaining merger costs, which generally
are not tax deductible, consist principally of investment banking, legal, accounting and printing fees in connection with poolings

of interests.

Pooling-of-Interests Transactions
In 2001, the Company completed one acquisition in ISS accounted for as a pocling of interests. A total of 8.3 million shares of
common stock were issued in connection with this acquisition, and outstanding options to buy shares of the acquired company
were converted into options to buy 1.3 million shares of the Company's common stock. Historical financial information has not
been restated due to immateriality.

In 2000, the Company completed one acquisition in ISS accounted for as a pooling of interests. A total of 4.4 million shares
of common stock were issued in connection with this acquisition, and outstanding options to buy shares of the acquired company
were converted into options to buy 0.6 million shares of the Company’s common stock. Historical financial information has not

been restated due to immateriality.

Subsequent Events
On January 21, 2003, the Company announced a definitive agreement to acquire all of the shares of Caminus Corporation for
approximately $158.4 million in cash. Caminus is a publicly-held global leader of integrated software solutions for the energy
industry with expertise in integrated transaction processing and physical asset scheduling solutions.

On February 4, 2003, the Company announced a definitive agreement to acquire all of the shares of H.T.E. Inc. for approxi-
mately $121.0 million in cash. H.T.E. is a publicly-held leader in government information technologies, providing a broad range
of software solutions for financial management, land development management, and public safety and justice.

THREE / Net Income per Common Share

The computation of the number of shares used in calculating basic and diluted net income per common share for each of the

years ended December 31 follows (in thousands):

2002 2007 2000

[ —
E‘ Weighted-average common shares outstanding 282,420 276,057 264,160 E
i| Contingent shares — — 104 |i
| Total shares used for calculation of basic net income per common share 282,420 276,057 264,264 ?(
|
l

1 Employee stock options 7,234 9,055 7,140
/| Total shares used for calculation of diluted net income per common share 289,654 285,112 271,404 |

S
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During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company had approximately 14.0 million outstanding employee stock options
thar are out-of-the-money and therefore excluded from the calculation of the dilutive effect of employee stock options. These
stock options are considered to be out-of-the-money because the option exercise prices exceed the average share price during
2002. The dilutive effect of employee stock options is measured by the amount, if any, that individual stock option exercise prices

are less than the average share price during the period.

3]

FOUR / Srort=term Invesiments

G

The Company has no short-term investments at December 31, 2002 and 2001. During the fourth quarter of 2001, the
Company realized a $1.4 million gain on the sale of short-term investments, the proceeds of which were used to fund the

acquisition of CAS.
FIVE / Property and Sguipment

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31 (in thousands):

2002 2005
{ Computer and telecommunications equipment $ 708,886 $ 588,985 |
1 Leasehold improvements 219,972 171,374 |
| Office furniture and equipment 137,149 124,395 |
 Buildings and improvements 85,626 84,680 |
' Land 23,319 24,738 {
% Construction in progress 13,241 3,830 !
1,188,193 998,002 |
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (621,994) (453,464) {
5 $ 566,199 $ 544,538 |

At December 31, 2002, total cost and accumulated depreciation of assets under capital leases is $31.4 million and $9.4 million,

respectively.
SIX / Debt

Debt consists of the following at December 31 (in thousands):

K 2002 2007
“ Bank Credit Agreement {effective interest rate of 3.7% and 3.1%) $175,000 $ 450,000 J’
4‘\ Purchase price obligations due former owners of acquired businesses 8,158 2,620 “
:i Orher, primarily capital lease obligations for computer equipment and buildings 22,934 6,011 ir
| | 206,092 458,631 §
{ Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt (18,128) (103,157) 11
| Long-term debt $187,964 § 355,474 |
| ]
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In connection with the acquisition of CAS, the Company borrowed $450.0 million under an unsecured interim credit facility
and on January 25, 2002, the Company replaced the interim facility with an unsecured credit agreement (Credit Agreement) that
provides for up to $500.0 million of unsecured borrowings. The Credit Agreement consists of a $150.0 million short-term facility
that expires in January 2004, and a $175.0 million revolving facility combined with a $175.0 million term loan that both expire in
January 2005. Up to $75.0 million can be borrowed in either British pounds or the Eurc. The Company can periodically designate
borrowings as base-rate borrowings or LIBOR borrowings. Base-rate borrowings bear interest generally at the prime rate plus a
margin (currently prime), while LIBOR borrowings bear interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus a margin (currently LIBOR plus
1%), depending upon the Company’s corporate credit rating at the time of the borrowing. Interest rates on base-rate borrowings
reset daily, while LIBOR borrowings can be fixed for one-, two-, three- or six-month periods at the Company’s option. In order
to remain eligible to borrow under the Credit Agreement, the Company must, among other requirements, maintain a minimum
net worth of $850.0 million plus 50% of net income after March 31, 2002 ($977.8 million at December 31, 2002), an interest
coverage ratio of at least four to one, and maximum total debt of two and one-half times the Company’s earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization. At December 31, 2002, there were outstanding term loan borrowings of $175.0 million.

Annual maturities of long-term debt during the next five years are as follows (in thousands):

[
| 2003 ' $ 18,128

\
2004 6,269

' 2005 178,200

1l 2006 1,723 |l

J 2007 836 ||

ii Thereafter 936 i

L !

SEYEN / Stock Option and Award 2lans

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan, a maximum of 8.0 million shares of common stock may be issued to
employees to purchase a limited number of shares of common stock each quarter through payroll deductions. The purchase price is
85% of the lower of the closing price of the Company's common stock on the first business day or the last business day of each cal-
endar quarter. During 2002, 2001 and 2000, employees purchased 1.2 million, 1.0 million and 1.2 million shares, respectively, at
average purchase prices of $20.08, $19.27 and $13.13 per share, respectively. At December 31, 2002, 6.1 million shares

of common stock were reserved for issuance under this plan.

Equity Incentive Plans

Under the Company’s Equity Incentive Plans, awards or options to purchase shares of common stock may be granted to key
employees. Options may be either incentive stock options or nonqualified stock options, and the option price generally must be at
least equal to the fair value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Generally, options are granted for a ten-year
term and are subject to a fout- or five-year vesting schedule. The number of shares available under the 1998 Equity Incentive Plan
will increase each year by the number of option shares exercised during the previous year under all of the Company’s equity plans,
subject to a maximum increase of 2% of outstanding shares as of the end of the previous year. In 2003, 1.8 million additional
shares became available for grant based on this provision.

During 2002, 2001 and 2000, performance accelerated stock options (PASOs) were awarded for an aggregate of 2.8 million,
3.5 million and 3.2 million shares, respectively. PASOs are nonqualified options that are granted annually near the beginning of a
performance period at an exercise price equal to the fair value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, with a term
of ten years beginning on the date of grant. Shares generally vest nine and one-half years after the date of grant, except that
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vesting may be fully or partially accelerated at the end of the third year if certain financial performance goals are met during the
performance period. During 2002 and 2001, vesting for approximately 0.8 million PASO awards in each year (out of a total
of approximately 2.5 million and 1.4 million PASO awards, respectively) was accelerated based on meeting performance goals.
Before 1998, long-term incentive plan awards (LTIP awards) were granted for future options. The actual number of shares and
the exercise price per share were contingent upon achieving certain operating results over a three-year period. There have been
no LTIP awards granted since 1997.
The table below summarizes transactions under these equity incentive plans. All amounts before June 2001 are adjusted for the

June 2001 two-for-one common stock split:

SHARES (IN THOUSANDS)

UMDER WEIGHTED-
__ AMAHLABLE__ _UMDER ORTION ____ITIR AWARD___AVERAGE RRCE

= .

| Balances at December 31, 1999 126 22,940 832 $11.66
Pooling of interests — 578 — 2.89
Authorized 18,140 — — —_

. LTIP maturity 202 630 (832) 4.77 ||
Expired (392) — — -
Canceled 4,096 (4,096) — 14.87
Granted (14,152) 14,152 — 17.34 |
Exercised — (4,624) — 6.43 |

Balances at December 31, 2000 8,020 29,580 — 14.43 M‘
Pooling of interests — 1,268 — 9.27 | ‘
Authorized 4,624 — — —
Expired (97) — — —
Canceled 2,188 (2,188) — 18.11

i Granted (10,810) 10,810 — 27.69
Exercised — (4,659) — 8.97 E

BRalances at December 31, 2001 3,925 34811 — 18.86
Authorized 14,752 — — —
Expired (19) — — —

| Canceled 1,621 (1,621) — 24.15 |
Granted (8,687) 8,687 — 3033 |,
Exercised — (1,823) — 12.59

i Balances at December 31, 2002 11,592 40,054 — 21.42

L [
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The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable options at December 31, 2002:

OPTIONS OUTSTAMDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE

NUMBER NUMBER WEICGHTED-

OF REMAINING OF AYERAGE

OPTIONS LIFE EXERCISE OPTIONS EXERCISE

—~RANGE OF FXERCISE PRICES UM THOUSAMDSY (UEARS) BRICE UM THAUSAMDSL . PRICK
o ]
|1 $0.50 to0 $15.00 6,645 49 $ 937 5,262 $ 8.59‘71
[ $15.01 t0 $20.00 13,873 6.8 17.08 5,140 17.38 ||
$20.01 t0 $25.00 3,776 8.6 23.63 851 23.90 |
$25.01 10 $30.00 9,839 85 28.03 993 28.12 [
over $30.00 5921 9.2 32.79 16 30.93 |
J

|

At December 31, 2002, 57.8 million shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under all of the Company’s equity
incentive and stock purchase plans, including 0.1 million shares under the restricted stock award plan for outside directors.

Restricted Stock Award Plan

The Company's Restricted Stock Award Plan for QOutside Directors (RSAP) provides for awards of restricted shares of the
Company's common stock to the Company’s outside directors. Beginning in 2001, shares awarded to each outside director are
equal to the number of shares with a fair market value of $0.5 million at the date of grant as of the beginning of each five-year
period. Shares awarded under the RSAP are subject to certain transfer and forfeiture restrictions that lapse over a five-year vesting
period. RSAP awards for 18,685 and 125,700 shares were granted during 2002 and 2001, at fair values of $25.32 and $27.42 per
share, respectively. There were no awards granted during 2000.

Unearned compensation expense related to the RSAP is reported as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, and compensation expense is recorded ratably over the five-year period during which the shares
are subject to transfer and forfeiture restrictions based on the market value on the award date less the par value of the shares
awarded. Compensation expense related to this plan aggregated $0.9 million, $0.8 million and $0.6 million in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

EIGHT / Savings Plans

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain savings plans that cover substanrially all employees. These plans generally provide that
employee contributions are matched with cash contributions by the Company subject to certain limitations including a limitation
on the Company’s contributions to 4% of the employee’s compensation. Total expense under these plans aggregated $23.1 million,
$17.6 million and $15.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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NINE / Incomme Taxaes

The provision for income taxes for each of the years ended December 31 consists of the following (in thousands):

2002 2007 200

ECurrent: W

Federal $130,747 $130,192 $ 96,079 i‘

State 33,660 33,045 26,267 |
| Foreign 8,726 12,725 11,156 }i
lﬂ 173,133 175,962 133,502 |
I |
;‘ Deferred {'
| Federal 34,355 (7,308) 9,002 ||
| Stte 4774 (1,467) 1,230 (/
|| Foreign 5,394 (2,770) 60 |
I 44,523 (11,545) 10292 ||
| $217,656 $164,417 $143,794 J‘

Differences between income tax expense at the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and the Company’s effective income tax
rate for each of the years ended December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

/’7 ax at federal statutory rare $190,154 $143,665 $124, 8687!
\J State income taxes, net of federal benefit 27,019 21,819 17,665 ‘:
;’ Nondeductible merger costs 1,108 1,410 560 [g
H Nondeductible intangible amortization — 4,287 3,181 |
‘f Nondeductible meals and entertainment 2,293 1,801 1,670
Il Tax-exempt interest income (418) (1,448) (856)
H Foreign taxes (5,018) (4,233) (5,709) |
‘1 Net operating losses 2,452 (1,624) 3,525
/| Other, net 66 (1,260) (1,110) 1
| $217,656 $164,417 $143.794 ||

1
l Effectlve income tax rate 40.0% 40.1% 40.3%;

] il
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Deferred income taxes are recorded based upon differences between financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities.
The following deferred income taxes were recorded at December 31 (in thousands):

2002 2001
Current:
Trade receivables $ 14,715 $ 13,595
Accrued compensation and benefits 9,635 10,261
! Unrealized loss on investment — 4,162 ;
i Other accrued expenses 22,858 17,202 |
| Deferred revenues 705 1,651
Tortal current deferred income tax asset $ 47,913 $ 46,871
!l Long-term: {
* Property and equipment $ 10,701 $ 17,803 ‘!’
i[ Intangible assets 63,719 106,018 ;
‘ Net operating loss carry-forwards 16,680 7,571 Q
Long-term incentive plan 2,098 2,217
Purchased in-process research and development 14,612 16,380 :
Total long-term deferred income tax asset 107,810 149,989 |
Valuation allowance (15,242) (7,571) L
Net long-term deferred income tax asset $ 92,568 $142,418 ;
J

A valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets associated with certain net operating loss carry-forwards has been

established since the Company currently believes it is more likely than not that the deferred income tax assets will not be realized.

Tax loss carry-forwards of North American subsidiaries, totaling $13.2 million, expire between 2010 and 2022. Tax loss carry-for-
wards of Israeli subsidiaries, totaling $18.7 million, are unlimited in duration and are linked to the Israeli consumer price index.

The remaining tax loss carry-forwards of certain European and Asian subsidiaries total $38.5 million (including $29.5 million at
acquired Guardian subsidiaries) and have various expiration dates beginning in 2007.

TEN / Stockholder Rights Plan

Under the Company’s Stockholder Rights Plan, all stockholders received rights to purchase shares of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (Preferred Stock). Each right will detach from the common stock and trade separately should any person or group
acquire beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company’s common stock or announce a tender offer for 15% or more of the
Company’s common stock. If a person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company's common stock
(Acquiring Person), all rights except for those held by the Acquiring Person become rights to purchase a fraction of one share of
Preferred Stock for $175, or a specified number of shares of the Company’s common stock at a 50% market discount, subject to
adjustment by the Company’s board of directors. If the Company merges, consolidates or engages in a similar transaction with an
Acquiring Person, each holder has a “flip over” right to buy discounted stock in the acquiring entity.
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Until the occurrence of ertain events, the rights are represented by and traded in tandem with common stock and cannot
be separately traded. Under certain circumstances, each right is redeemable at a nominal price. Further, upon the occurrence of
certain events, the Company’s board of directors has the option to exchange shares of common stock for the rights. The rights,
which are non-voting, expire on July 20, 2010.

 The Company's board of directors may amend or terminate the Stockholder Rights Plan at any time or redeem the rights
before the time a person acquires more than 15% of the Company’s common stock.

ne

ELEVEN / Common Stock Split

On May 11, 2001, the Company’s board of directors authorized a two-for-one stock split of the Company’s common stock.
Stockholders of record as of the close of business on May 25, 2001 received one additional share of SunGard stock for every share
held on that date. The number of shares used for purposes of calculating net income per common share and all per-share data
before June 18, 2001 (the effective date) have been adjusted to reflect the stock split.

TWELVE / Segmenrt ard Ceogravhic (nformation

The Company is an efficient operator of resilient IT solutions. This efficiency comes from the economies of scale achieved by
providing products and services on shared platforms to thousands of customers throughout the world’s financial, business and gov-
ernment markets. The Company has three segments. ISS primarily serves financial services institutions by processing their
investment and trading transactions. ISS develops, markets and maintains a broad range of complementary software applications,
grouped into the following business areas: brokerage and trading systems; wealth management systems; investment management
systems; treasury and risk management systems; and benefit and investor management systems. ISS delivers its systems as an
application service provider, using its data centers that customers access via the Internet or a private network, and on a license fee
basis. Customers include banks, brokers, exchange members, corporates, investment managers, mutual funds, investment advisers,
insurance companies, depositories, custodians, trustees, benefit plan administrators, transfer agents, utilities, energy companies and
governments. AS primarily serves IT-dependent enterprises by helping them ensure the continuity of their business. AS provides
a comprehensive continuum of information-availability services for all major computing platforms, as well as information-avail-
ability consulting services and planning software. AS also provides managed hosting services for application and data-center
outsourcing. Other Businesses provide general ledger and administration software systems to the public sector, workflow manage-

ment systems to healthcare organizations and automated mailing services.
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Operating results and certain asset information for each segment for each of the years ended December 31 follow

(in cthousands):

TOTAL CORPORATE
OTHER OPERATING AND  CONSOLIDATED
‘ 1S5 AS. RUSIMESSES SEGMEMIS_____ OTHERIXEMS _________TOTAL___
| 2002
j Revenues $1,385,948 $1,052,500 $154,789 $2,593,237 $ — $2,593,237
Depreciation and amortization 93,272 166,375 7,703 267,350 711 268,061
Operating income 310,862 257,809 29,109 597,180 (50,547 547,233
Goodwill 321,242 584,985 32,823 939,050 — 939,050
i‘ Total assets 1,458,743 1,686,200 91,252 3,236,195 45,401 @ 3,281,596
!| Cash paid for property and
| equipment 30,682 84,839 1,718 117,239 4,054 121,293
] 200
|| Revenues $1,324,964 $ 522,434 $134,439 $1,981,837 $ — $1,981,837
I Depreciation and amortization 100,507 65,027 9,609 175,143 689 175,832
:2 Operating income 272,654 147,533 20,377 440,564 (41,354)® 399,210
| Goodwill 258,324 330,326 32,815 621,465 — 621,465
,E Total assets® 1,176,690 1,373,411 75,919 2,626,020 272,138 @ 2,898,158
H Cash paid for property and
"‘ equipment 37,351 62,833 1,633 101,817 286 102,103
I 2000
! Revenues $1,176,998 $ 411,949 $114,149 $1,703,096 $ — $1,703,096
;: Depreciation and amortization 84,380 51,337 9,702 145,419 643 146,062
|| Operating income 238,035 117,744 15,618 371,397 (36,135)" 335,262
“‘ Goodwill 256,777 8,569 31,518 296,864 — 296,864
l Total assets 1,042,330 248,887 62,385 1,353,602 491,583 @ 1,845,185
|| Cash paid for property and
| equipment 37,284 59,789 1,449 98,522 359 98,881

{
i

(1) Includes corporate administrative expenses and merger costs.

(2) The Company does not allocate deferred income taxes. Amount is net of investments in subsidiaries and other items that are eliminated in consolidation.

(3) Includes reclassification for comparative purposes.
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The Company’s revenues by customer location for each of the years ended December 31 follow (in thousands):

2002 2001 204@_0“_'
| United States $2,085,133 $1,595,580 $1,351,469 ‘
! B
' International
¢ International:

‘ Europe 361,287 269,825 231,302
| Canada 58,303 34,840 31,517 1,
| AsiafPacific 56,285 60,977 71986 |
| Other 32,229 20,615 16,822 |
| 508,104 386,257 351,627 ||
| $2,593,237 $1,981,837 $1,703,096 |
i l‘

THIRTEEN / Commitmen’s and Contingencies

Commitments

The Company leases a substantial portion of its computer equipment and facilities under operating leases. Future minimum
rentals under operating leases with initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year at December 31, 2002
follow (in thousands):

\

i( 2003 $125,220
| 2004 106,409 |:
/| 2005 87,362 ||
|| 2006 68,197 |
|| 2007 59,173 |1
‘ Thereafter 225,507 E
$671,868 |,
L J

Rent expense aggregated $125.3 million, $104.0 million and $88.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

At December 31, 2002, the Company has outstanding letters of credit and bid bonds of $24.4 million, issued primarily as
security for performance under certain customer contracts.

Contingencies
The Company is presently a party to certain lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of its business. In the opinion of management,
none of its current legal proceedings will be material to the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

In connection with certain previously acquired businesses, a total of up to $126.0 million could be paid as additional considera-
tion over the next three years, contingent upon the future operating performance of those businesses (see Note 2).
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of SunGard Data Systems Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’
equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of SunGard Data Systems Inc. and its sub-
sidiaries at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
AisidoFowaLoand 44P

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 11, 2003
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HASBRO, INC.

With operations in more than 25 countries and 2002 revenue of $2.8 billion, Hasbro is not only a world leader

in the toy and game industry, but also the proprietor of a complex and extensive IT infrastructure supporting

the marketing and manufacturing of its products. Information is critical to the day-to-day business processes
at Hasbro and integral to its functions. In a relationship that dates back to 1991, Hashro is protecting this
infrastructure and improving its operational resilience with business continuity services provided by SunGard

Availahility Services.

The story of business continuity at Hasbro reflects the experience of many large organizations, tracing the
evolution of the importance of its technology infrastructure. Initially, Hasbro’s relationship with SunGard was
focused solely on its event-driven disaster recovery plan — the measures necessary to restore the IT environ-
ment to full operation following a power interruption, usually caused by a natural disaster such as a hurricane,
flood or earthquake. Over the years, that disaster recovery plan has broadened toward a comprehensive
business continuity plan, based on a department-by-department analysis of business operations and the neces-
sary requirements not just for [T systems but also for the staff, facilities and services needed to support
them. Hasbro acknowledges that the effort it takes to make a plan of this scope truly comprehensive is

> More than 10,000 information availability customers woridwide
> 3 million square feet of hardened, secure recovery facilities

> 75 facilities in more than 10 countries

> Supporting more than 30 IT platforms

\>-



ongoing — and in fact, never-ending, as the continuous improvement to its technology infrastructure is never-

ending. Such treatment of key business operations by senior executives at Hasbro has served the company well
over the past 80 years — and has enabled it to remain an industry leader. |
Over the course of the late "90s Hasbro enacted sweeping changes in its approach to IT. The company

transitioned from a mainframe-based platform to a client-server model, from batch processing to a real-time,

2417 operation, and from a variety of mismatched applications to a suite of integrated products offered by an
enterprise-wide system. Hasbro also consolidated processing from several worldwide locations to just its
Pawtucket, Rhode Island, headquarters.

By 1999, the majority of Hasbro's manufacturing applications had transitioned to the client-server model,
but some key legacy applications remained on the mainframe system.

The transition had two major consequences for Hasbro's business continuity plan: the new technological
environment made disaster recoveries much more complex, and the consolidation of IT operations made
business continuity everi more critical. Now, if there is an interruption in operations it would affect not just

users in one location, but users around the world.




Operates in more than 25 countrie
including manufacturing sites in *@h@ UMD
lreland and Spain

After working with Hasbro to define the issues, SunGard recommended one of its business recovery
applications, named Silhouette OS, which was well suited to Hasbro’s new operating environment. Silhouette
automatically monitors the customer's operating system environment and transmits to the SunGard Availability
Services facility a profile that includes hardware configurations, storage devices, performance tuning parameters,
and network and communications data. When it’s time to run a test or launch an actual recovery, the data and
computing configuration is loaded and ready to go — a capability that has made a huge difference to Hasbro.
Simulated recoveries that previously took 48 hours are now completed in less than 24. The shortened time
frame makes it possible for Hasbro to do more comprehensive and realistic tests that include network
connectivity to the U.S., Europe, and the Pacific Rim.

Hasbro identifies Silhouette as one of SunGard's key offerings that drive this longstanding relationship.
Couple this with SunGard’s state-of-the-art availability facilities, industry leading expertise and people who take

the time to understand Hasbro's business, and you have a winning combination. Business continuity may seem
to focus on technology, but as Hasbro’s case illustrates, intellectual capital and solid relationship building are
equally critical.
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ING GROUP /

At ING Group, SunGard is considered/,aﬁ/important_partner in helping the information technology team fulfill
its key responsthility: to support b‘%s,iﬁ%ss growth. A multifaceted and multinational banking, insurance, and
asset management organization, ING sees information technology as a core component of its operation, not just |
a cost center, and it sees SunGard as one of a select number of expert providers supporting this capability.
SunGard’s relationship with ING encompasses some 18 products, systems and services in both investment
support systems and availability services, yielding both efficiency and resilience. These range from BRASS, an
equity order management and routing system, to BancWare, an asset/liability management system. The newest |

addition to this line-up is Credlent, a real-time global risk management system, which ING is using to effi

ciently manage credit risk ansmg from market operations worldwide.

vision of efficiency through consohdatxon For years, ING enjoyed strong growth through a series of acquisitions,
and for years the companies that' ING acquired operated with a great deal of autonomy within ING. This meant
a proliferation of varied software splunons. In the past two years, however, ING has moved decisively to

|

|

E

|

|

" The implementation of Credlent illustrates the strategic vision guiding ING’s technology initiatives — a ]’
|

|

|

|




streamline the number of systéms it supports, adopting the motto “one application per domain.” In the case of

risk management, for exar}/xf)/le, ING will implement Credient throughout the corporation, and Credient will be
the only real-time credit///f/isk system it will operate.

The move to Crechent is resulting in efficiencies of many kinds. First, it will mean savings through
consolidation as ING supports one application rather than several. Second, it will virtually eliminate manual
intervention by means of straight-through processing, streamlining the entire process by which ING monitors
and manages counterparty and credit risk throughout ING. Third, by providing more complete information and

allowing centralized control of risk, Credient will allow ING to determine limits on risk more precisely and
enable ING to utilize its assets more fully, thereby helping to enhance ﬁnanc1al performance.
" Credient is also a highly resilient solution. ING is running Credient on an ASP basis — that is, accessing
SunGard's highly s secure network and data center. The ASP model has made it especially convenient for ING to

' contract with SunGard for availability services in support of Credient. In effect, ING enjoys the benefits of one-

~ stop shopping, purchasmg a software solution that meets its needs, access to a ‘network on which to operate i,
| and business continuity services to back it up, 2 all from a single vendor.

:::::




Along with its move toward consolidation,@has also decided that it will select solutions developed by
leading independent software vendors rather than building applications in-house, as was once common within
the organization. ING cites three major reasons for this decision: faster time-to-market; savings in development
costs; and the assurance of state-of-the-art functionality going forward. Members of ING's technology team
explain that they know SunGard will refine and update its products to meet changing needs and regulations
and that it will do so more quickly and consistently than most in-house teams could.

In fact, investment in research and development is one of the key factors that ING cites for working with
SunGard. In addition, it values the stability that comes with SunGard’s financial strength, and the responsive-
ness of the SunGard project team during recent Iimplementations.

Senior ING managers say their philosophy is to seek partners rather than vendors. This means companies
that understand ING'’s business, that offer products meeting its requirements, and that have the global reach to
support ING’s global operation — all quahﬁcatlons SunGard dearlv Dossesses ING’s vision of partnership, like

SunGard’s, is a win-win proposition, through whlch SunGard makes money from the services ING purchases,
and ING saves money through the efﬁc1ency and resilience SunGard enables.




~ UMB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

To grow with and meet the demands of its customers, UMB Financial Corporation saw a need to enhance
! its technology-driven products and services. Within a little more than a year, UMB implemented five major
' investment support systems from SunGard. The pattern UMB followed — building one initiative upon
another — illustrates a path of success often followed by SunGard customers.
A leading, regional bank with assets of $7.3 billion,UMB began its new initiatives by replacing several legacy
- systems. It chose SunGard'’s Global Plus to replace an existing trust administration application, and InTrader as
} its new fixed-income system. Global Plus provides UMB a straight-through-processing platform for the_‘,fb/ank’s
wealth management and trust and custody businesses, while improving service to its customers. Used by institu-
. tions to profitably manage their high net worth and pension account clients, Global Plus offers customers a real-
; time platform, with compfehensive multicurrency and multilingual capabilities, in a trade date, accrual-based
asset management and accounting system. InTrader is a real-time system that provides fully integrated front-,
' middle- and back-office processing for fixed-income trading, sales, custody and portfolio accounting.
‘! As UMB was implementing Global Plus and InTrader, the bank was also completing the acquisition of
|
|
|

| Sunstone Financial (now UMB Fund Services) — a step supporting the company’s strategy to expand its role in

- | the investment servicing business. Customers for this business include the mutual funds that subcontract their

'ba

| back-office operations. As a bank, UMB offers customers cash management as well as custodial services, and it




saw the opportunity to dlstmgmsh itself w1th the convenience of “one-stop shoppmg To do this, UMB put in

place the IT infrastructure to support this operation efﬁc1ently Installing complementary solutions from one
strategic vendor, SunGard, was preferable and more effective than trying to integrate single solutlons from
several vendors,

This is why UMB selected Investar*ONE, a transfer agency and fund accounting system, and INVEST ONE,
a global mutual fund shareholder recordkeepmg system. Investar*ONE allows UMB to increase its efficiency and

improve the quality of its transaction processing. The system quickly processes transactions and offers greater
connectivity with UMB's information database, allowing UMB to focus on providing excellent customer service.

Powerlmage, the fifth major SunGard system added, joined the line-up in support of INVEST ONE and
Investar*ONE. Powerlmage is an advanced enterprise workflow document management and imaging system. It
digitally captures customer information as images in order to automate wortkflow. Powerlmage integrates seam-
lessly with: Investar*ONE to allow UMB immediate access to all of its customer information, creating greater
efficiency and greater productivity.

Implementing SunGard's proven technology enhances UMB's capabilities and helps to further solidify its
position as a market leader. Although each SunGard solution was chosen to meet a specific need, a larger,




overarching goal has guided UMB’s IT strategy: the promise of straight-through processing. When all of the
SunGard systems are fully implemented, they will also be integrated — allowing UMB to complete transactions
from beginning to end while reducing the level of paper and intermediaries. UMB's employee benefits depart-
ment, trust division and investment group, once linked by fax and phone, will now be joined system to system.
UMB expects the integration of systems to significantly enhance the efficiency and resilience of its
operations, particularly since the applications will run mainly on an ASP basis. The bank anticipates the
ASP model will make upgrades much faster and more cost-effective, a task that had grown cumbersome with
its legacy systems. |
Over the course of the past year, SunGard and UMB not only have engaged in a complex and successful
multi-product implementation, but also have strengthened a 23-year partnership. UMB’s desire to expand and
link its financial services systems provided SunGard an opportunity to build on that relationship and
| create an integrated solution for UMB that crosses multiple product lines. Many points of contact between

senior SunGard people and senior management at UMB helped forge this partnership.
The path toward strategic partnership began with a key decision by UMB that is typical of many SunGard
customers: focus the bank’s efforts on the added value it can bring to its customer relationships while entrusting

information technology to a partner with the scale and expertise to excel at it.

Jl
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